ANNAMALATI ASSOCIATES CA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

To

The Members of
APA Engineering Private Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of APA Engineering
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”)and its subsidiary (the
Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™)its associates and
Jointly controlled entities , comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2016. the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”)that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group including its Associates and Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules.
2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
ussociates and  jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irrcgularitics: the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasenable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

linancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
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of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in

the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal
{inancial controls system over financial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policics used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained hy the

other auditors in terms of their reports referred 10 in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters




paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its

associates and jointly controlled entities as at 31st March, 2016, and their consolidated

profit/loss and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of
the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company,
subsidiary company, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated
in India, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specifi ed in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies.
associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled




companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(I} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
“with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities.

ii.  The Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India.

Place : Chennai For Annamalai Associates
Date : May 09,2016 Chartered Accountants

CA.K.K.Nilakanthan
Partner

Mem No. 027208

FR No. 0001858




“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph | under the heading  ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the
vear ended March 31, 2016;

1.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b)The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner , designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in
our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between
the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals.

(b} The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared
o books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not
material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to uvs. the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 ol the Campanics
Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.




6.

8.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the company.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employces
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs. Duty of
Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2016 for a
period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax

outstanding on account of any dispute except the following.

Name of the Period to Forum Where
S‘ Nature of dues | Amount in Rs | which it dispute is
tatue .
B o | relates pending
Income Tax Apr 2006- Mar | CI'l . Appeals,
IT Act 1961 | (RPC) 14,12,810 2007 | Chennai
Income Tax Apr2007 - Mar - CI't . Appeals.
IT Act 1961 (RPC) 14,76,340 2008 Chennai o
Income Tax Apr 2008- Mar | CIT, Appeals,
IT Act 1961 (RPC) 27,45,510 2009 Chennai
Income Tax Apr 2009 - CIT, Appeals,
IT Act 1961 (RPC) 8.68,030 Mar 2010 Chennai
Income Tax Apr 2009 - CIT, Appeals,
IT Act 1961 (RPO) 9,96,482 Mar 2010 Chennai
Apr 2009 - CIT, Appeals,
IT Act 1961 Income Tax 7,06,795 Mar 2010 Chennai
Apr2010- Mar | CIT . Appeals,
IT Act 1961 Income Tax 19,23,391 2011 | Chenndi

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 10 us. the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not
taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the government and has not
issued any debentures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial




12.

public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term l.oans.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order arc not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or
provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act:

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company, Therefore. the provisions of
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

- In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section

177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

- Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear
under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions  with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.




16. In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 [A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Place : Chennai
Date : May 09,2016

For Annamalai Associates
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Mem No. 027208
FR No. 0001858




“Annesure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date _on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of APA Engineering Private limited

Repoit on the Internal Financial Controls Under a clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of APA Engineering
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the
Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
Controls. Their responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effcctively for ensuring the orderly and
cefficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its asscts, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness off
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
tinancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issucd by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
cstablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal tinancial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
{raud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting




A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in rcasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company: (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, of
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
stalements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repotting

I3ecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstalements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2016.

Place : Chennai For Annamalai Associates
Date : May 09,2016 Chartered Accountants

CA.K.K.Nilakanthan
Partner

Mem No. 027208
FR No. 0001858




APA Engineering Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at

. Amountin%T
Particulars Note Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2015
. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1iShareholders’ funds
{a) Share capital 2.1 518,940 518,940
{b) Reserves and surplus 2.2 137,273,984 106,470,740
2|Non-current liabilities
(a} Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2,848,889 2,585,000
(b} Long-term provisions 2.3 561,043 561,043
3|Current liabilities
{a) Short-term borrowings 2.4 13,035,152 5,481,657
{b} Trade payables 2.5 156,106,014 170,503,902
{c) Other current liabilities 2.6 6,093,511 39,502,158
(d) Short Term Provisions 2.7 156,145 1,853,447
TOTAL 316,593,718 327,476,887
Il. JASSETS
1|Non-current assets
(a} Fixed assets 2.8
(i) Tangible assets 37,880,617 32,506,166
{ii) Intangible assets 3,646,577 2,887,899
(b} Long-term loans and advances 29 1,423,998 605,355
2{Current assets
{a) Current investments 2.10 16,703,706 13,500,000
(b) Inventories 211 38,134,879 73,981,177
{c) Trade receivables 2.12 172,389,682 149,303,014
{d) Cash and cash equivalents 2.13 31,322,803 26,421,791
{e) Short-term loans and advances 2.14 15,091,456 28,271,485
TOTAL 316,593,718 327,476,887
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts 1&2

"As per our report of even date"

For ANNAMALA} ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 0001855

ovd

e

CA.K.K.Nllakanthan
Partner
Membership No.: 027208

irector

Place : Chennai
Date : May 09, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K™

Director




APA Engineering Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

Amountin¥
Particulars Note Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2015
I.|Revenue from operations 2.15 1,010,585,617 840,683,770
It.{Other income, {net) 2.16 3,752,490 6,375,360
Ill.{Total Revenue 1,014,338,107 847,059,130
IV.|Expenses:
Cost of Revenue 217 843,309,838 726,949,267
Employee benefit expenses 2.18 80,411,052 56,985,580
Finance costs 2.19 382,143 399,982
Depreciation 2.8 4,674,781 5,053,186
Other expenses 2,20 31,887,873 22,326,416
Total expenses 960,665,637 811,714,431
V.iProfit before tax 53,672,420 35,344,699
Vl.[Tax expense: 2,21
{a) Current tax 17,642,551 11,770,979
{b} Deferred tax 263,889 {163,088)
{c) Short\(Excess) provision for earlier years - 1,133,794
VIL}Profit after tax 35,765,980 22,603,014
Minority Interest - 261,929
VIlL.|Profit for the year 35,765,980 22,341,085
Earnings per equity share:
Equity shares of par value ¥ 10/- each 51,894 51,894
Basic 689 431
Diluted 689 431
Weighted average number of equity shares used in
computing earnings per share
Basic 51,894 51,894
Diluted 51,894 51,894
gi_ggiﬂcant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts 1&2

"As per our report of even date"

For ANNAMALAI ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 000185S

KA

/
CA.K.K.Nilakanthan
Partner
Membership No.: 027208

Place : Chennai
Date : May 09, 2016

ector

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SN

Director




APA Engineering Private Limited
Consolldated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended

Particulars Mar 31, 2016 Mar 31, 2015
A. Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities 4 T T T
Profit before tax and exceptional items 53,672,420 35,344,699
Add:
1. Depreciation 4,674,781 5,053,186
2. Interest Charges 382,143 399,982
3. Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment - 816,233
4. Interest income (797,787) (2,719,078)
S. Loss on sale of asset - {75,000)
6. Dividend Income {277,837)
7. Foreign Exchange Adjustments -Loss /(Gain} -net 8,406,305 2,912,793
9,387,605 6,388,116
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 63,060,025 41,732,815
Working Capital Changes
1. {increase} / Decrease in Trade Receivables {28,492,973) {4,419,103)
2. {increase}/Decrease in inventories 35,846,298 (39,793,620}
3. {increase}/Decrease in Loans and advances 12,361,386 3,923,797
4. Increase / {Decrease) in Trade payables & Other
Liabilities {67,649,239) 62,988,010
Net Working Capital Changes {47,934,528) 22,699,084
Cash Flow from Operations 15,125,497 64,431,899
Direct Tax Paid {845,166} (7,660,218}
Net Cash from operating Activities 14,280,331 56,771,685
B. Cash Flow from investing Activities
1. Interest Received 797,787 2,719,078
2.Increase in capitla reseve on merger - (12,000,000}
3. Purchase of Fixed Assets {10,807,911} (3,653,133}
4. Profit on Sale of assets - 75,000
5. Purchase of Investments {3,203,706) -
6.Fixed Assets additions on account of Merger {5,173,339) -
7. Dividend from Investments 277,837 {4,500,955)
8. Adjustments on account of Merger 15,003,895 -
9. Adjustments on account of investments . (24,610,154}
10. Adjustments on capital reserve on consolidation {9,354,113)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities {12,459,550) {41,970,164)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
1.Interest paid (382,143} (399,982)
2.Increase/(Decrease} in borrowings, Net 7,553,535 {14,465,016)
3.Dividend Paid/Proposed (4,281,254)
4.increase/(Decrease} in Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 150,093 38,396
3,080,231 (14,826,602}
Net Increase/ {Decrease) in cash and Cash equivaients 4,901,012 {25,081)
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the 26,421,791 26,446,872
Cash and Bank balances as per Balance Sheet 31,322,803 26,421,791

"As per our report of even date”

For Annarnalai Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registratiog No.: 0001855

CAK.K.Nilakanthan
Partner
Membership Na.: 027208

Place : Chennai
Date : May 09, 2016




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

1. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1. Basis of Preparation

The accounts have been prepared on historical cost convention basis in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in India. The Company adopts the accrual
system of accounting unless otherwise stated. The company has adopted the going concern
concept of accounting.

1.2. Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used for consolidation are drawn
up to the same reporting date as of the company. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the company and its subsidiary companies have been
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. All material intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized surpluses and
deficits on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Consistency in adoption of
accounting policies among all group companies is ensured to the extent practicable.

b) The excess of cost to the company of its investments in subsidiary companies
over its share of equity of the subsidiary companies at the dates on which the investments in
subsidiary companies are made, is recognized as ‘Goodwill’ being an asset in the consolidated
financial statements. Alternatively, where the share of equity in the subsidiary companies as
on the date of investment, is in excess of cost of investment of the company, it is recognized
as ‘Capital Reserve’ in the consolidated financial statements.

c) Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consist of the
amount of equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the dates on which investments
are made by the company in the subsidiary companies and further movements in their share
in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investment.

1.3. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference
between the actual result and estimates are recognized in the period in which results are
known / materialized.

1.4, vValuation of Inventories

inventories are valued at the lower of cost, computed on a weighted average basis,
and estimated net realizable value after providing for cost of obsolescence and other
anticipated losses, the cost comprises of cost incurred in bringing inventories to their present
location and condition.




APA Engineering Private Limited

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

1.5. Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby net profit before tax is

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The Cash Flows from regular revenue generating,
investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. The Cash flow statement
forms part of the financial statements.

1.6. Depreciation Accounting

The Company has provided depreciation on all assets on Straight Line Method

prescribed by Companies Act, 2013.

1.7. Revenue Recognition

1

Sales are recognized when invoices raised and are recorded net of trade discounts,
rebates, sales tax and excise duties.

Software & Consultancy Revenue

The Contracts between the Company and its customers are either Time and Material
contracts or Fixed Price contracts.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognized according to the milestones achieved
as specified in the contracts on the Proportionate Completion Method based on the
work completed. Any anticipated losses expected upon the contract completion are
recognized immediately. Changes in job performance, conditions and estimated
profitability may result in revisions and corresponding revenues and costs are
recognized in the year in which such changes are identified,

in respect of time and material contract, revenue is recognized in the year in which the
services are provided. Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnings in excess of
billings while unearned revenue represents the billing in excess of cost and earnings.

Revenue from product sale and licensing arrangements are recognized on delivery and
installation,

Other Incomes

(a) Interestincome is recognized using time proportion method based on rates
implicit in the transaction.

(b) Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is
established.




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

1.8. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are capitalized at acquisition cost, which comprises of freight, installation
cost, duties, taxes and other directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working
condition for the intended use. Individual low costs assets (acquired for T 5,000 or less) are
depreciated over the period of one year from the date of acquisition.

1.9. Foreign Exchange Transaction
i. All monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reflected at the rates
prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

ii. Income and expenditure involving foreign exchange are translated at the exchange
rate prevailing on the dates of transaction.

iii. Exchange differences, if any arising on account of fluctuations in foreign exchange has
been duly reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.10. Investments

All investments are long term investments based on their nature and intended holding
period and are carried at cost. Cost comprises of transfer fee, stamp paper, brokerage etc.,
Any decline in the value of the long-term investments, other than a temporary decline, is
recognized and charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss.

1.11. Retirement Benefits

a. Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as Provident Fund are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The liability is not funded.

b. The Company estimates its liability towards employees Gratuity based on actuarial
valuation carried out as at the Balance Sheet date.

¢. Accumulated compensated absences is recognized based on the eligible leave at credit
on the Balance Sheet date and is determined on the basis of the estimated cost as per
the terms of employment contract.
1,12. Borrowing Cost
The Company has not availed any term loan. Interest on working capital facilities is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and hence there is no Borrowing Cost.
1.13. Segment Reporting
The Company has identified Business Segment as its Primary Segment and Geographic
segment as the secondary segment. The Company has identified Software Products &
Consultancy Services and E-Business Solutions as the reportable segment of the company for
the year. Geographical segment information is disclosed based on the location of customers.
1.14. Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings per Share and Diluted Earnings per Share are calculated by dividing the
Net Profit after Tax for the year attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the Weighted
Average Number of Shares outstanding during the period.




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

1.15. Taxes on Income
Current Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of Income tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax has been determined as per Accounting Standard AS 22 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

1.16. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of
past event; it is possible that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at
the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2. Notes to the Accounts

2.1. Share Capital

2.1.1. The particulars of authorized, issued, subscribed & fully paid up Share Capital;

Authorised
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

issued, Subscribed & Paid up fully
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

Total

500,000

5,000,000

500,000

5,000,000

51,894

518,940

51,894

518,940

2.1.2. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of
the year is as given below;

518,040

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 51,894 518,940 51,894
Changes during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 51,894 518,940 51,894 518,940

2.1.3. Holding Company

30,128 Equity Shares (30,128} are held by TAKE Solutions Limited, the holding company.

2.1.4. Equity Shareholder holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the number of
equity share held at the end of the year;

— .

TAKE Solutions Limited 30,128 58% 30,128
Mr. K. Vaidynathan 10,883 21% 10,883 21%
Mr. K. Ramakrishanan 10,883 21% 10,883 21%




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.2. Reserves & Surplus

{a} Capital Reserve on Consolidation - 9,354,113
(b) Securities Premium Account 4,617,240 4,617,240
at the beginning and end of the year
(c) General Reserve 2,630,021 2,630,021
at the beginning and end of the year
{d) SEZ Re-Investment Allowance Reserve
Opening Balance - 5,000,000
Less: Utilisied for Capitalization of assets - 5,000,000
Closing balance - -
() Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 228,489 38,396
{f) Surplus (Balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss)
Opening balance 89,830,970 68,002,173
Add: Net Profit/{Loss) for the year 35,765,980 22,341,085
Amounts available for appropriations 125,596,950 90,343,258
Less: Appropriations;
Interim Dividend 4,151,520 19,273,979
Proposed Final Dividend 129,734 -
Dividend Distribution Tax 871,577 5,105,002
Adjustments on account of acquisitions/merger 2,824,890 (19,273,979}
Adjustments as per Sch I of Companies Act, 2013 - 407,286
Add: SEZ Re Investment Allowance Reserve - {5,000,000)
Capitalization
Add: Adjustment to merger/Acquisition 12,179,005
Closing Balance 129,798,234 89,830,970
Total




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.3. Long-Term Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Unfunded)
Total

561,043 561,043

2.4, Short-Term Borrowings

Secured

Loans repayable on demand from Banks 13,035,192 5,481,657

(PCFC loan from HDFC Bank Ltd is secured primarily by
exclusive charge on the entire current assets of the
company,collateral serucity-Corporate Guarantee by TAKE
Solutions Ltd and Personal Guarantee by the Directors)

Total

2.5. Trade Payables

Trade Payables 156,106,014 | 170,503,902

Total

2.6. Other Current Liabilities

Advance received from customers 49,956 34,807,024
Employee related liabilities 5,221,253 3,723,513
Statutory payables 822,302 971,621

Total ve




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.7. Short-Term Provisions

Equity Dividend Payable 129,734 -

Dividend Tax Payable 26,411 -
Provision for tax - 1,853,447
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APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.9. Long-Term Loans and Advances

- Rent Deposit
- Electricity Deposit
- Others

Total

Security Deposits {Unsecured, considered good)

Others - Advance income tax (Net Adjustments)

2.10. Current Iinvestments

Other investments
investments in Mutual funds

Total

Notes:

Investments in Mutual Fund
(Unquoted and Non Trade)
{a) Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund
{b} TATA Purity Equity Fund
(c} Birla SL Dynamic Bond Reg G
(d) IDFC SSI Medium-term Reg G
{e} Kotak Bond Short-term Reg G
{f} Reliance Short-Term G
(g} L & T India Prudence Fund
{(h) L & T Equity Fund

Total

12,771.392

66,426.351
172,160.746
155,289.751
136,848.465
167,298.684
11,244.830

98,978
494,895
75,688
754,437

500,000
1,500,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
3,500,000
3,000,000
203,706

13,633
66,426
172,161
155,290
136,848

175,178
329,790
100,387

500,000
1,500,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
3,500,000




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.11. Inventories

Stock -in-Trade (Valued at cost price) 38,134,879 73,981,177

Total

2.12. Trade Receivables

Trade receivables outstanding for a period of more than six
months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 1,916,564 2,253,200

Trade receivables outstanding for a period of less than six
months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 170,473,118 147,049,814

Total

2.13. Cash & cash Equivalents

Current accounts with banks 23,189,048 15,908,638

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 8,128,005 10,497,789

Cash on hand 5,750 15,364
Total :

2.14. Short-Term Loans and Advances

Unsecured, considered good

Others - Advance to Employees 1,262,777 1,937,679
Others - Advance to Suppliers 13,828,679 26,333,806
Total ‘




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.15. Revenue from Operations

Income from e- Business Solutions 7352 14670
Income from Software Services and Products 105,469,100

Total

868,263,122
142,322,495

2.16. Other Ine

Interest Income 797,787 2,719,078

Other non-operating income - 649,176

Dividend Income 277,837 -

Profit on Redemption of Mutual funds - 2,932,106

Profit on sale of Asset - 75,000

Other non-operating income ~
Total a

2.17. Cost of Revenue_ N

824,227,475
19,082,363

E-Business Expenses
Software & Consultancy Expenses
Total

714,048,060
12,901,207

2.18. Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries & Allowances 74,351,510 52,673,654
Contribution to PF & Other Funds 2,874,275 2,199,510
Gratuity & Other Benefits 918,788 816,233
Staff Welfare 2,266,475 1,296,183




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.19, Finance Cost

interest Expenses 382,143 345,982
Others 7 54,000

2.20. Other Expenses

301,117 296,175

Audit Fees

Bank Charges 427,313 642,625
Charity (Others) 53,688 -
Communication Expenses 1,979,778 1,691,656
Electricity Expenses 1,506,792 902,821
Foreign Exchange Loss/(Gain)-net 5,406,305 2,912,793
Insurance 627,967 323,277
Legal & Professional Expenses 7,247,425 5,054,288
Marketing Expenses 1,420,058 1,958,450
Office Expenses 130,153 96,126
Postage & Telegrams 442,137 433,778
Printing & Stationery 392,755 238,734
Rates & Taxes 623,040 809,138
Rent 676,440 453,900
Repairs & Maintenance - Others 1,249,419 970,424
Repairs & Maintenance - Plant & Equipment 1,181,512 46,200
Security Charges 547,580 442,263
Subscription Charges 33,500 5,000
Travelling Expenses 7,640,894 5,048,768

Total 2




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.21. Tax Expenses

Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Short\{Excess) Provision for earlier years
Total

17,642,551 11,770,979
263,889 {163,088)
- 1,133,794

2.22. Earnings Per Share

22,341,085
51,894

Net Profit after tax
No of Equity Shares

35,765,980
51,804

Earnings per share Basic and diluted
(Face value of T 10/- each)

2.23. Related Party Disclosure

A) Holding Company
TAKE Solutions Limited, India

B) Subsidiary Companies
RPC India Private Limited, India (Merged with APA Engineering Pvt Ltd w.e.f. 01.04.2015)
APA Engineering Pte Ltd, Singapore

C} Fellow Subsidiaries
Navitas LLP {Formerly known as TAKE Solutions Global LLP)
TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore

D) Key Management Personals
Mr. K. Vaidyanathan
Mr. K. Ramakrishnan
Mr. Srinivasan H.R
Mr. G. Ramesh
Ms. Deepa Jeyakumar




APA Engineering Private Limited

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

E) Details of Transactions during the year and balances as at March 31, 2016;

Name of the party Nature of Transaction March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
TAKE Solutions Limited interim Dividend Declared 2,407,882 -
TAKE Solutions Limited Proposed Final Dividend 75,246 -
TAKE Solutions Limited Dividend Payable 75,246 -
TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd | Cost of Revenue 18,341,400 -
TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd | Trade Payables 31,802,880 -
Mr. K. Vaidyanathan Director's Remuneration 6,000,002 3,636,300
Mr. K. Vaidyanathan Interim Dividend Declared 871,819 -
Mr. K. Vaidyanathan Proposed Final Dividend 27,244 -
Mr. K. Vaidyanathan Dividend Payable 27,244 -
Mr. K. Ramakrishnan Director's Remuneration 6,000,002 3,636,300
Mr. K. Ramakrishnan Interim Dividend Declared 871,819 -
Mr. K. Ramakrishnan Proposed Final Dividend 27,244 -
Mr. K. Ramakrishnan Dividend Payable 27,244 -

2.24, Segment Reporting
Primary Segment Reporting

Segment Revenue 142,322,495 868,263,122 1,010,585,617
Segment Cost 65,879,231 824,227,475 890,106,706
Segment Resuit 76,443,264 44,035,647 120,478,911
Unallocated Corporate income 3,752,430
Unallocated Corporate Expenses 70,176,838
Operating Profit 54,054,563
Interest expenses 382,143
Income taxes 17,906,440
Net profit for the year 35,765,980
Secondary Segment Reporting

Revenue

India 28,316,028

Outside India 982,269,589

Total 1,010,585,617




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.25 ., Contingent Liabilities:

a) APA Engineering Private Limited, a subsidiary company has received demand from
Income Tax authorities for payment of additional tax of T 2,630,186 upon completion
of their tax assessments for the AYs 2010-11 and 2011-12. The tax demands are
mainly on account of disallowance of deduction claimed by the company under
Section 10A of the Income Tax Act. The company has filed CIT appeals for the above
assessment years with the appellate authorities and the matter is pending before the
Commissioner of Income Tax, Chennai. The management is hopeful of succeeding the

same.

b) RPC Power India Private Limited, now merged with APA Engineering Private Limited
has received demand from Income Tax authorities for payment of additional tax of
< 7,499,172 upon completion of their tax assessments for the AYs 2007-08, 2008-09,
2009-10 and 2010-11. The tax demands are mainly on account of disallowance of
deduction claimed by the company under Section 10B of the Income Tax Act. The
company has filed appeals for the above assessment years with the appellate
authorities and the matter is pending before the Commissioner of Income Tax,

Chennai. The management is hopeful of succeeding the same.

2.26. Lease

The Company has taken land on lease from MEP2, Tambaram, for a period of 15 years and
constructed a building thereon.

Period Amountin¥
Within one year 386,160
Between one to five years 1,119,180
More than five years -

Total rent expenses for operating lease (including cancellable lease) amounted to 676,440
(% 210,780) for the year ended March 31, 2016.




APA Engineering Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.27. Comparative Figures

Corresponding figures of previous year have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to
conform to the current year classifications.

For Annamalai Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No. 000185S For and on hehaf of the Board of Directors

CA.K.K.Nilakanthan Director ‘ Director
Partner
Membership No. 027208

Place : Chennai
Date : May 09, 2016



Sundar Srini & Sndhar

Chartered Accountants

Certificate

It is hereby certified that we have verified the particulars contained in the Statement
of Account and Solvency including the Statements of Assets and Liabilities as at 31
March 2016 and the Statement of Income and Expenditure and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ending 31 March 2016 from the accounting records and other
books and papers of NAVITAS LLP and found them to be true and fair.

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 004201S

B \ >

S. Sri
Partner
Membership No. 025504

Place: Chennai
Date: May 10, 2016

| Floor, New No. 9, Rajamannar Street, T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017. India. Phone - +91-44-281585628, 42071968 Fax: +81.44.28158526 e-mail - mailchn@sssindia.com
BANGALORE COCHIN HYDERBAD



Sundar Srini ¢ Sr.i/dhar

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Partners of Navitas LLP

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Navitas LLP (‘the LLP’}, which
comprise the Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of
fncome and Expenditure and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the LLP
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008 {'the Act’) for safeguarding the
assets of the LLP and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements thal give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the LLP’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the LLP has in place an adequate internal financial control systems over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
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Sundar Srini & Sridhar

Charteced Aceasuntants

accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

a. in the case of the Statement of Assets and Liabilitics, of the State of affairs of the LLP
as at 31* March 2016;

b. in the case of the Statement of income and Expenditure, of the profit for the year
ended on that date; and

¢. in the case of the Cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.004201S

Membership No. 025504

Place: Chennai
Date: May 10, 2016

i & Sridhar
Gyndar Srin %Cif:‘ddfs

o
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Navitas LLP
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at
Amount in Amount in ¥
Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

CONTRIBUTION & LIABILITIES
Partners’ Funds
Contribution - Capital Account 10,000,000 100,000
Partners’ Current Account 396,029,556 258,993,345
Loan Funds
Secured Loan - ICICI Cash Credit 54,843,535 57,172,663
(Secured against fixed asset & current assets)
Unsecured Loan from Partners - 391,025,000
Other Liabilities
Sundry Creditors - For Capital Goods 1,478,181 4,814,154
Sundry Creditors - Trade / Services / Others 144,875,464 130,970,551
Deferred Revenue 24,164,191 22,499,887
QOther Payable 38,271,770 11,549,781
Provisions .

a. Income Tax 248,035,838 174,557,412

b. Deferred Tax 81,326,002 107,406,665

¢. Employee Benefits 16,619,870 13,887,712

d. Expenses 1,736,880 918,775

Total 1,018,381,287 1,173,895,945
ASSETS
Fixed Assets
Gross Block 891,466,150 1,175,040,565
Less: Accumulated Depreciation {528,326,574) (630,893,986)}
Net Block 363,139,576 544,146,579
Capital work in progress - 162,231,000
Other Assets - Capitalised Software Product Costs - Net - 2,495,326
Current Assets
Sundry Debtors 221,654,221 178,360,258
Cash & Cash Equivalents 26,438,821 13,826,505
Loans & Advances 407,148,669 272,836,277
Total 1,018,381,287 1,173,895,945

As per our report attached

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Chartered Accountants For Navitas LLP

Firm Registration No.: 004201$
Jlibium&// .

v

5. Sridh - N.5. Shobana C. Gowri Shankar
Part Designated Partner Designated Partner
Membership No.: 025504 DPIN: 01649318 DPIN: 00269690

Place : Chennai
Date : May 10, 2016

Page1of8



Navitas LLP

Statement of income & Expenditure for the year ended

Particulars

Amount in ¥

Amountin ¥

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

Income

Export Revenue
Domestic Revenue
Other Income
Total

Expenses

[Personnel Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Electricity Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance
Selling & Marketing Expenses
Audit Fees

Depreciation

Amortisation

Interest & Finance Charges

Other Expenses
Cost of Licenses and Services

Professional Chages

Rent, Rates & Taxes

Travelling & Conveyance
Exchange Fluctuation Loss (Net)

Total
Profit before Tax

fLess: Provision for Tax
Less: Deferred Tax

Profit After Tax

Profit Transferred to Partners’ Current Account
Profit Transferred to Reserves & Surplus

269,352,742 244,187,218
660,215,081 423,340,759
44,481 1,301,356
929,612,304 668,829,333
235,905,053 209,940,479
13,658,044 10,849,077
26,164,545 23,815,139
32,513,662 22,038,869
1,859,146 3,971,015
600,000 600,000
159,757,662 167,400,333
2,495,326 2,495,340
7,462,498 1,974,106
232,021,100 63,507,715
5,670,361 8,413,831
37,849,086 30,107,395
24,341,502 15,812,913
2,590,305 1,269,559
782,888,290 562,195,771
146,724,014 106,633,562
82,803,016 16,388,000
(26,080,663) 17,710,429
90,001,661 72,535,133
90,001,661 72,535,133

As per our report attached

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0042015

Membership No.: 025504

Place : Chennai
Date : May 10, 2016

For Navitas LLP

N.S. Shobana
Designated Partner
DPIN: 01649318

C. Gowri Shankar
Designated Partner
DPIN: 00269690

Page 2 of 8




Navitas LLP

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended

Particulars

Amount in T

Amount in ¥

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Firm Registration No.: 004201§
) s

S. Sridbat
Parther
Membership No.: 025504

-

Place : Chennai
Date : May 10, 2016

N.S. Shobana
Designated Partner
DPIN: 01649318

Profit Before Tax 146,724,014 106,633,562
Adjustme'nts for

Depreciation & Amortisation 162,252,988 169,895,673
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Asset (12,516) 5,848
Impairment of asset 129,343 -
Bad debts - 630,181
Interest Expense 7,462,498 1,974,106
Operating Profit before working Capital Changes 316,556,327 279,139,370
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets other than cash & cash equivalents (186,930,945) (136,462,463)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 43,505,496 (122,782,634)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 173,130,878 19,894,273
B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets {201,339,002) (3,668,288)
Sale of Fixed Assets 384,702,516 -
Increase in Capital Wark in Progress - (165,803,967)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 183,363,514 (169,472,255)
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Paid (7,462,498) (1,974,106)
Increase in partner's contribution 9,900,000 -
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings (2,329,128) 57,172,663
Increase / (Decrease) in Unsecured Loans (391,025,000) 47,590,000
Additions to / (Withdrawal from) partners’ current account 47,034,550 20,679,824
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (343,882,076) 123,468,381
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents 12,612,316 (26,109,601)
Add: Cash and Cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 13,826,505 39,936,106
Cash & Cash equivalent as at the end of the year 26,438,821 13,826,505
As per our report attached

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar

Chartered Accountants For Navitas LLP

Juilhond—"= -

C. Gowri Shankar
Designated Partner
DPIN: 00269690
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Navitas LLP

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the
mandatory Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl)
and the relevant provisions of the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of
accounting except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions the LLP may undertake in
future, actual results ultimately may differ from the estimates. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognized prospectively in future periods.

Depreciation Accounting

Fixed assets are depreciated on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the useful life of the assets as
prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. For the assets acquired / disposed
during the year, depreciation has been charged on pro-rata basis.

Revenue Recognition
Software & Consultancy Revenue

The Contracts between the LLP and its customers are either time or material contracts or fixed
price contracts.

a) Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognized according to the milestones achieved as
specified in the contracts on the Proportionate Completion Method based on the work completed.
Any anticipated losses expected upon the contract completion are recognized immediately.
Changes in job performance, conditions and estimated profitability may result in revisions and
corresponding revenues and costs are recognized in the period in which such changes are
identified.

b) In respect of time and material contract, revenue is recognized in the period in which the

services are provided. Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnings in excess of billings while
deferred revenue represents the billing in excess of cost and earnings.

¢) Revenue from product sale and licensing arrangements are recognized on delivery and
installation,

Accounting for Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Fixed assets are capitalized at
acquisition cost, which comprises of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes, and other directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use.

Accounting for effects in foreign exchange rates

a) Conversion - All monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reflected at the closing
exchange rates prevailing on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities date; the resultant exchange
differences are recognized in the Statement of Income & Expenditure. Non-monetary items which
are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

b) Initial Recognition - Income and Expenditure items involving foreign exchange are translated
at the exchange rate prevailing on the dates of transaction.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

¢) Exchange Differences - Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled
during the period are recognized in the Statement of Income & Expenditure for the period.

Accounting for Retirement Benefits

a. Provident Fund
The LLP makes contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 which is a defined contribution plan
and contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which the
services are rendered by the employee.

b. Gratuity
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on actuarial valuations at the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities date, carried out by an independent actuary.

c¢. Leave Encashment
Provision for leave encashment benefits is made based on the actuarial valuation as at the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities date.

Accounting for taxes on income

Current Tax

Provision for Income Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act,
1961.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax reflects the effect of timing differences between the assets and liabilities
recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized for current tax
purposes. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only if there is reasonable certainty of their
realization.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
¥ R
Components of Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)
Fixed Assets 81,326,002 107,406,665
Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) 81,326,002 107,406,665

The Deferred Tax Liability reversed during the FY 2015-16 is 326,080,663 and Deferred Tax
Liability provided during the FY 2014-15 is 17,710,429

Intangible Assets

Software Product Development Cost

Internally developed software products are valued based on costs directly attributable to the
development of such software and allocated indirect cost and they are capitalized individually
once their technical feasibility is established in accordance with the requirements of Accounting
Standard 26, ‘Intangible Assets’. Expenses incurred during research phase till the establishment
of commercial feasibility is charged off to Statement of Income & Expenditure. Products
capitalized are being amortized over a period of three years from the launch date and the
unamortized product costs as at Statement of Assets and Liabilities are shown under Assets
separately.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Related Party Disclosure for the year ended March 31, 2016:
List of Related Parties

Name of the Related Party Relationship

TAKE Solutions Limited, India Partner

TAKE Business Cloud Private Limited, India Partner

Navitas, Inc., USA Fellow Subsidiary
TAKE Enterprise Services Inc., USA Fellow Subsidiary
Navitas Life Sciences Limited, UK Fellow Subsidiary
Navitas Life Sciences inc, USA Fellow Subsidiary
Towell TAKE Solutions LLC, Sultanate of Oman Fellow Subsidiary
TAKE Solutions Information Systems Pte Ltd, Singapore Fellow Subsidiary
APA Engineering Private Limited, India Fellow Subsidiary

Applied Clinical Intelligence, LLC

Fellow Subsidiary(ceased w.e.f

30 June 2015)
Mirnah Technology Systems Limited, Saudi Arabia Fellow Subsidiary
Transactions with Related Party
Revenue
For the For the
year ended year ended
Name of the Related Party March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
T R
Navitas, Inc., USA 89,016,665 80,778,246
TAKE Enterprise Services Inc., USA 5,260,079 2,088,150
Navitas Life Sciences Limited, UK 2,007,764 2,574,499
Navitas Life Sciences, Inc., USA --- 4,278,076
TAKE Solutions information Systems Pte Ltd, Singapore 145,418 1,858,223
Mirnah Technology Systems Limited, Saudi Arabia 13,732,189 6,010,986
TAKE Solutions Limited, india 24,000,000 36,000,000
Applied Clinical Intelligence, LLC(ceased w.e.f 30th
June 2015) 1,015,344 9,772,821
APA Engineering Private Limited, India - 49,093
Accounts Receivable
As at As at
Name of the Related Party March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
T ke
Navitas, Inc., USA 52,521,868 33,281,822
TAKE Enterprise Services Inc., USA 756,909
Navitas Life Sciences Limited, UK 2,169,834 2,712,507
Navitas Life Sciences, Inc., USA 1,248,565

Page 6 of 8




Navitas LLP

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Mirnah Technology Systems Limited, Saudi Arabia 7,028,503 2,543,516
Applied Clinical Intelligence, L1 C{ceased w.e.f 30th June 2.850.616
2015) ,689U,
Accounts Payable
As at As at
Name of the Related Party March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
L4 L4
Navitas, Inc., USA 77,557,524 73,370,382
Towell TAKE Solutions LLC, Sultanate of Oman 99,820 94,362
Navitas Life Sciences Limited, UK 1,020,796 965,685
TAKE Solutions Limited, India 4,373,332
Loans and Advances Payable
As at As at
Name of the Related Party March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
g L
TAKE Business Cloud Private Limited, India --- 391,025,000

10. Segment Reporting:

Primary Segment Reporting

The LLP primarily provides services in the nature of software products and consultancy services.

Hence, there is only one business segment.

Secondary segmental reporting

The secondary segmental reporting of the LLP has been performed on the basis of geographical

segments based on location of Customers

For the For the
Location of Customers year ended March 31, year ended March 31,
2016 2015
T T
AsiaPac 687,744,576 435,584,804
usa 234,464,512 222,364,344
Rest_: of the World 7,358,735 9,578,829
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Navitas LLP

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

11. Lease:

Obligation under Non-cancellable operating lease:

As at As at
Minimum Lease Payments
Mar 31, 2016 | Mar 31, 2015
Not later than one year 29,301,619 | 28,321,620
Later than one year but not {ater than five years 96,979,613 | 126,287,162
Later than five years

12. Due to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises

The Management has initiated the process of identifying enterprises which have provided goods
and services to the LLP and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as
defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2016 has been
made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the LLP. The
LLP has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act. In the view of
the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the

provisions of the aforesaid Act is not expected to be material.

Disclosure required under the Micro, Small and Medium Development Act, 2006
a. Delayed payments due as at the end of year on account of Principal - T Nil/- (T Nil/-)

b. Total Interest paid on all delayed payments during the year under the provision of the act - ¥

Nit/- (€ Nil/-)

c. Interest due on principal amounts paid beyond the due date during the year but without the

interest amounts under this Act - T Nil/- (I Nil/-)
d. Interest accrued but not due - T Nil/- (X Nil/-)
e. Total Interest due but not paid - T Nil/- (¥ Nil/-)

13. Contingent Liabilities not provided for is T Nil/- (X Nil/-)

14, Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the

current year presentation.

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration (Nq. : 0042015

™~ ~
e

W (O
S. Sridh
Partn

Membership No.: 025504

For Navitas LLP

=

‘dﬁ&w e

N.S. Shobana C. Gowri Shankar
Designated Partner  Designated Partner
DPIN: 01649318 DPIN: 00269690

Place : Chennai
Date : May 10, 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
To the Members of Manipal Acunova Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Manipal Acunova
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
{hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in
the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
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Sundar Srini & Sridhar

the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of

Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at

31 March 2016, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiary companies, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥ 151,927,267 as at March 31, 2016, total revenues of
¥ 193,162,628 and net cash outflows amounting to I 7,804,362 for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We have relied on the unaudited financial statements of subsidiaries whose financial
statements reflect total assets of T 24,803,149 as at 31% March 2016, total revenues of
¥ 29,160,566 and net cash outflows amounting to ¥ 1,025,516 for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These unaudited financial
statements as approved by the respective Board of Directors of these subsidiaries have
been furnished by the Management to us and our opinion insofar as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is
based solely on such approved unaudited financial statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and financial
statements certified by the management.

R
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements,

{b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, none of the Directors of the Holding Company is disqualified as on 31 March 2016
from being appointed as a Director in terms of sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Act.

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B” to the standalone financial statements of the Company since the Company
does not have any subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India; and
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(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts;
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0042015

e

S, Sfidhar
Partner
Membership No. 025504

Place: Manipal

Date: May 02, 2016
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Consolidated Balanze Shesat

Notes As at As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
k4 ?
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 262.468.050 260.,105.033
Reserves and surptus 4 403,920012 321084794
666,388,062 581,189,827
Non current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 214766.742 18,773.732
Long term provisions 8 662,462 697,782
215429.204 20,471,514
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 118,372.594 361,046,969
Trade payables 8 82942626 74,933,590
{Includes total dues of Micro and Small Enterprises ¥ Nit (March
31, 2015 T Nil)) - Refer Note 29 }
Other current habilities 9 626.337.449 492 245 196
Short-term provisions 10 31981427 34.546.931
859,634,096 962.772,6868
.Tota! 1,741,451,362 1,564,434,027
Assets
Non current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 11 80.678,030 101.345.626
Intangible assets 11 505,511,408 505,261,113
Tangible assets under development 364,247 344 183
Intangible assets under development 4,727 654 -
Goodwill on Consolidation 90,436,968 84 834951
Deferred tax asset. net 12 5,049,015 4519724
Long-term loans and advances 13 84.543.322 108,022 135
851,310,644 805,327,712
Current assets
Inventories 14 3,790,303 4,184 599
Trade receivables 15 305,176,085 196,534 443
Cash and bank balances 16 376,156 444 386,189,318
Short-term loans and advances 17 205.017.886 172.217 955
890,140,718 759,106,315
Total 1,741,451 362 1 564,434,027
Summary of significant accounting policies and  other 2- 32
explanatory information
The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated
financial statements
For Sundar Srini & Sridhar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Manipal
Chartered Accountants Acunova Limited
Firm Registration No. 004201S e
,juﬁuu( Y NM,«—,}:’, . N
Srinivasan H. R, D. V. Ravi
Director Director
DIN- 00130277 DIN: 00171603
Manipai Manipal Manupal
02 May 2016 02 May 2016 02 May 2016
7
R (
A\QA / j “},
Ankita Tivari LalitMahapatra
Company Secretary Chief Financiat Officer
Membership Number: A34067
Manipai Manipal
02 May 2018 02 May 2016
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

Notes 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
ks g
Revenue
Revenue from operations - Sale of Services 1.410.025,887 1.317,932.927
Other income 18 37.721.373 36,128,030
Total revenue 1,447.747,260 1,354,061,957
Expenses
Clinical study and research subcontract costs 394,508,449 288,864,864
Laboratory consumables and chemicals consumed 19 52.510.721 41471662
Employee benefits expense 20 571,478,567 668,690,378
Finance costs 21 40,459,773 55,492,463
Depreciation and amortisation 11 40,700,273 40.536 517
Other expenses 22 306,289,200 352,845,328
Total expenses 1,405,946,983 1,447,901,212
Profit / {loss) before tax 41,800,277 {93,839,255)
Tax expense
Current
- Foreign 1,249,074 100,929
- Domestic - -
Deferred - 11,217 425
Net profit / {loss) after tax for the year 40,551,203 {105,157,.609)
Minority Interest - )
Net profit / (loss) for the year 40,551,203 (105,157,608}
Earnings/{loss) per equity share (par value of 2 10 each) 26
Basic (&) 2.28 (5.91)
Diluted (2) 1.70 NA
Summary of significant accounting policies and other 2- 32
explanatory information
The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated
financial statements
‘r Sundar Srini & Sridhar For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of Manipal
Chartered Accountants Acunova Limited

Firm Registration No.: 004201S
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Srinivasan H. R. D. V. Ravi
Director Director
Membership No.: 025504 DIN: 00130277 DIN: 00171603
Manipal Manipal Manipal
02 May 2016 02 May 2016 02 May 2016
/":’ Q}) ;
/{"¥\@ /
Ankita Tiwari
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number: A34067
Manipal Manipal
02 May 2016 02 May 2016
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Consclidated Cash Flow Statement for the year en

Note:

The Company considers all tighly liquid investments with a rernaining maturity, at the date of purchaselinvestment, of

equivalents.

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
2 L4
A Cash fiow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax 41,800,277 (93,839,265)
Adjustments for:
Prior period expenses
Depreciation and amontisation 40,700,273 40.536.517
interest expense 38.065.564 52,710,302
Profit on sale of fixed assets 478,286 {490.108)
Unrealised exchange gain - 1,119.641.
Provision no longer required writtan back (13,892.579) {10.880.517)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 9,512,082 9.863.548
Bad Debts written off 77.35% -
Profit on sale of investments {558,953) -
interest incoma (9.753.053) {9.013.124)
Employee Stock Option Expense 6,484 341 -
Operating profit before working capitai changes 113,110,597 (9,992,998)
Movements in working capital :
(Increase) / decrease in inventories 374,296 541,758
{increase) / decrease in trade receivables (118,231.083) 139.504.112
Decrease in loans and advances (56.527.005) 19,324,040
{Increase) / decrease in other cutrent assels - 39.469.133
{Decrease) / increase in trade payables 21,701,615 119413434
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 47712984 {137.051 964)
{Decrease) in short-teom provisions 11.762.260 (4.213.463)
Cash generated from operations 19,903,664 166,994,054
Taxes received. net of payments 52,593,729 7.330.253
Net cash generated from operating activities 72,497,393 174,324,307
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assels {67.860.226) {21.236.868)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1489120 1.053.752
nterest recaived 9.753.053 8,031,011
Net proceeds from deposits/ mutual funds 559,953 -
Investment in fixed deposits (3.321.648) (8,929.071)
Net cash generated from / (used in} investing activities {59,369,748) {21,081,176)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Recovery Manipal Acunova Empioyee Welfare Trust 2.363.017 1,400 000
Proceeds/ Repayment from long ferm borrowings net 285.763.540 (8.570.992)
Repayment of debentures (3.169.590) -
Net movement in short term borrowings {242 674,375} {8.936.615)
Repayment of finance lease obligations {1.221.671) (1.259.199)
Interest paid (38.065,564) (52.780.013)
Net cash generated (used in} financing activities 2,995 357 (70,146,819)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 16,123,002 83,096,312
Eftect of exchange rate changes (29.477 524} (47 273.463)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 268,682,608 232,839,760
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 265,308,087 268,662,609
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.572 111 1,156.647
Balances with banks
- ify current accounts 216.735.976 267,505.962
- 1n deposit account (with matunty upto 3 months) 37.000.000 .
255,308,087 268,662,609

three months or less 1o be cash

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regsﬂinon,ﬂo. 0042018
"~ LY

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Manipal Acunova

N’//

Limited
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Srinivasan H. R. D. V. Ravi
Director Director
Membership No.. 025504 DIN 00130277 DIN 00171603
Manipal Manipal Manipal
02 May 2016 02 May 2016 02 May 2018
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Ankita Tiwari
Company Secretary
Membership Number A34067

Latit ahapatn/
Chiet Financiai Officer

Manipal
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

1 Background

Manipal Acunova Limited (the Company) i1s engaged in providing services in the field of Celiular Research, Clinical Trials,
Contract Research, Clinical Data Management and Biostatistical Services.

2 Basis of preparation

a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India. The Company has prepared these consolidated financial statements to comply in all matenal respects with the
accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
{Accounts} Rules, 2014

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention The
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consohidated financial statements are consistent with those of previous year

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the principies and procedures for the preparation
and presentation of consolidated financial statements as laid down under Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial
Statements prescribed under the Rules. The consolidated financial statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting
policies in use at the Group. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities. income and expenses after eliminating intra-group
balances, intra-group transactions and unrealized profits or losses The amount shown in respect of reserves comprises the
amount of the relevant reserves as per the Balance Sheet of the Company and its share in the post-acquisition change in the
relevant reserve of subsidiaries. Minority interest represents the amount of equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the
dates on which mvestment in a subsidiary is made by the Company and its share of movements in the equity subsequent to the
dates of investments as stated above.

The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary companies over its share of the equity of the subsidiary
companies at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary companies were made, 1S recognised as goodwill, being an
assel in the consohdated financial statements. Where the share of the equity in the subsidiary companies as on the date of
investment is in excess of cost of investment of the Company. it is recognised as capital reserve and shown under the head
Reserves and surplus.

b} Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires
management of the Group to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the results of operations
dunng the reporting periods. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates used by management in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements include the estimates of the economic useful lives of the fixed assets. provision for doubtful debts
and accruals for employee benefits Any revision to the accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future
periods

¢} Revenue recognition
The Group denves its revenues from clinical trial and research services. laboratory testing and analysis services and clinical data

management services. Revenue is recognised lo the extent that the aconomic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can
be reliably measured.

Revenue from time and material service contracts is recognised as the services are provided under the terms of the contracts
Revenue from fixed price service contracts is recognised based on the proportionate compietion method

Reimbursements recewved for certain expenses incurred on projects invoiced separately to customers are included in revenues and
amounts recoverabie from customers at year end are reflected as sundry debtors.

Amounts billed or payments received, where all the conditions for revenue recognition have not been met, are recorded as
deferred revenue under liabilities and are recognised as revenue when all revenus recognition critenia have been met

Unbilled revenue represents revenues recognised for services rendered in accordance with contractual terms. which have not
been billed to the customer at the Balance Sheet date The related bilings are performed within the next operating cycle.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis. taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applied.
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Manipal Acunova Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
d) Fixed assets
Tangible Assets
Tangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any The cost of ﬂged
assets comprises of their purchase price and any other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition
for intended use

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of those fixed assets which necessarily take a substamiai period of time to get
ready for thew intended use are captalised. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of fixed assets before the financial year-end and the cost of the fixed assets not ready for their
intended use, are disclosed as capital work-in-progress

Financing costs reiating to acquisition of fixed assets are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are
ready to be put to use

Expenditure directly relating to expansion is capitalised only if it increases the life or functionality of an asset beyond its onginal
standard of performance

Intangible assels

Intangible assets are stated at the consideration paid for acquisition less accumulated amortisation. Goodwill represents the
excess of purchase price over the book value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary companies on the date of investment
Goodwilt is not amortised but is tested for impairment on a penodic basis.

e) Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight line method, using the estimated useful lives as specified below

Particulars Useful lives in Years
Vehicies 2-8
Plant & Machinery 2-15
Fumiture & Fixtures 1-5
Computers 2-6

L ease Hold improvements Over the period of lease

Intangible assets comprising of software and trademark are amoriised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated useful life
ranging between two to seven years.

f) Impaiment

The Group assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there 1s any ndication that an asset including goodwill may be impaired
If any such indication exists. the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset If such recoverable amount of the asset or
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs i1s less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment 108s and is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount 1s reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated
ristorical cost

g) Investments

investments that are readily realisabie and intended to be held for not more than a3 year are classified as current investments. All
other investments are classified as long-term investments Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in
value is made to recogrise a decline other than temporary in the vaiue of the investments

h} Inventories

Laboratery consumables and chemicals are valued lower of cost and net realisable value Cost is determined on a first-in-first-out
basis and includes ait costs mncidental in bringing the inventories 1o their present location and condition. Provision is made for
cbsolescence where considered necessary

i}  Foreign currency transactions
Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency. by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction

Transiation

Faoreign currency menetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical
cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, and non-monetary
items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rates that existed when the values were determined

Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary tems at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded during the year. or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income
of as expense in the year in which they arise except those arising from investments in Mations

& Srighe
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Notes to the consolidated Hnancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2016
i) Foreign currency transactions (Cont'd)
Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, form part of Company's net investment in a non-integral

foreign operation 1s accumulated 1in a foreign currency translation reserve in the consclidated financial statements until the
disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised as income or as expenses

Translation of integral and non- integral foreign operations

The financial statements of an mtegral foreign operation are transiated as if the transactions of the foreign operation have been’
those of the Group Hself

in transiating financial statements of non-integral operation for incorporation in financiat statements, the assets and liabilities both
monetary and non-monetary. of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at the closing rate; income and expense items of
the non-integral foreign operation are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transaction; and all resulting exchange
differences are accumulated in a foreign currency transiation reserve untit the disposal of the net investment

On disposal of a non-integral foreign operation. the cumulative amount of the exchange difference which have been deferred and
which relate to that operation are recognised as income or expense in the same year in which the gain or loss on disposal i$
recognised.

Where there 15 a change in the classification of a foreign operation, the translation procedure applicable to the revised
classification are applied from the date of the change in the classification

) Leases

Finance Leases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the
lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the
lease liabiity based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income

if there 15 no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalised leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated usefut life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating Leases
Lease where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as

operating leases Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. .

ki  Retirement and other empioyee benefits

Expenses and liabiities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 Employee
Benefits

Defined contnbution plan

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund to the Group's Indian employees are a defined contribution scheme and the
contnbutions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions are due. There are no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner

in case of foreign subsidiary companies, contributions are made as per the respective country laws and regulations The same is
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis. There are no obligations beyond the Group's contribution

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity obhigations to the Group's Indian employees are recogrised at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance sheet date less the far value of plan assets (if any). together with adjustments for unrecognised actuanal gains or losses
and past service costs Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available
refunds and reductions in future contnbutions to the plan. Independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method
calculate the defined benefit obligation annually

Cther long term employee benefits

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet
date 1s recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit
expected to be availed by the employees. Liability/Asset in respect of earmed jeave becoming due or expected to be availed more
than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuanial valuation as at the balance sheet date in a
manner similar to gratuity liability

Actuarial gains/iosses are immediately taken to Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred.

Other short-term benefits
Expense in respect of cther short-term benefits including performance incentive is recogrised on the basis of amount paid or

payable for the period during which the employees render services. f;/,:r%n%-\\&\
b s Sedhar
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

I} Taxexpense

The Company has various income tax treatments among its group The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect a
provision for income taxes for its subsidiaries that are foreign corporations subject to tax m their respective countries

Tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Current income tax is measured as the amount expected to be paid in respect
of taxabie income for the period. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable
ncome and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation
or carry forward tax losses. all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing
evidence thal they can be realised against future taxable profits.

At each Balance Sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred tax
assets to the extent that «t has become reasonably certain or virtually certain. as the case may be that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised

m) Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders (after

‘ deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitied to participate in

dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period The weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding dunng the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue. bonus element in a nghts issue to existing shareholders, share

split and reverse share split {consclidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
censidered for deriving basic sarnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been
1ssued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. In computing diluted earnings per share only potential equity shares
that are dilutive and that either reduces earmings per share or increases ioss per share are included

n)  Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect Method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
tash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash fiows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated The Cash flow statement forms part of the financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly iquid financial instruments. which are readily convertible into Cash and have onginal maturities
of three months or less from the date of purchase. to be cash equivalents

. o}  Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there 1S 3 present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow
of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obiigation A disclosure for a contingent liability is made
when there is a possible obligation or a present obhgation that may. but probably will not. require an outflow of resources Where

there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote. no
provision of disclosure is made.

P)  Onerous Contracts

Present obligations ansing under onerous contracts are recogrused and measured as a provision. An onerous contract is
considered o exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the cbligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it

2 *%\\\
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Motes (o the consohidated fmanuial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Number Amount (¥} Number Amount (¥)
3 Share capital
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of # 10 each 19.186.100 191.861.000 19,186,100 191,861,000
Preference shares of ¥ 1,000 each 108,139 108,139,000 108,139 108,138,000
19,284,239 300,000,000 19,294,239 300,000,000
issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 17.795.305 177.953,050 17.795,305 177,853,050
Less. Amount recoverable from Manipal Acunova Employee Welfare Trust - - « 2.383.017
17.785.305 177.853.050 17.785.305 175.590.033
Preference shares of ¥ 1,000 each 84,515 84.515.000 84 515 84,515,000
17,879,820 262 468,050 17,879,820 260,105,033

a} There has been no movement in the equity share capital during the current and previous years

b} Rights, preferences, restrictions of the equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equily shares is entifled to one vote per share. The Company pays and declares
dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject lo sharehoiders approval (except for interim dividend) in ensuing
Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company. the equity shareholders will be entitied to received the remaining assets of the
. Company, afler distribution of all preferential amounts. ff any. in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehoiders,

¢} Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares

As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
Na f the Sharehold
me of the Shareholder Number % held Number % held
TAKE Solutions Limited® 16.531 425 92 90% - -
Manipal Education and Medical Group India Private Limited . 5.786.973 32.52%
Acunova Life Sciences Private Limited - - 8413 355 47 28%

* TAKE Solutions Limited. by virtue of SPA entered on 18th Navember 2015, has agreed to purchase 100% paid up share capital of the company
Pending RB! approval for transfer of shares from Foregn investors, the balance shares of 1.263.880 (7.10% of the outstanding equity shares of the
company) have not been transferred in the name of TAKE Solutions Limited,

d) The Company has not allotted shares by way of bonus nor bought back equity shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2016

8) There has been no movement in the equity share capitat during the current and previous years

f) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the preferonce shares

As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
Name of the Sharehold
© Share o Number % held Number % held
. TAKE Solutions Limited 84 515 100% - -
Caduceus Asia Mauritius Limited . . 84515 100%

g} Rights, praferences, restrictions of the preference shares

The rights and restnctions atlaching to the Compuisortty Convertible Cumulative Freference Shares{CCPS) differ from those aftaching to Equity Shares
as follows:
- The holders of CCPS have no rights 1o receive notices of. attend or vote at general meetings excepl in certam limited circumstances
- On a distribution of assets of the Company, on a winding-up or other return of capital (subject to certain exceptions). the holders of CCPS have priority
over the holders of Ordinary Shares 10 receive the capital pad up on those shares,

h) Conversion terms of the preference shares
The Compuisorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares{CCPS) are convertible into equity shares upon the expiry of 20 {twenly) years from the date
of aliotment, at the Conversion Price determined in accordance with the Share Hoider's agreement dated 20 November 2009. Also. the Investor shall be

entiied. at its option to require the Company to convert all or any part of the Investor CCPS held by it into Equity Shares, at any time after the date of
allotment. in accordance with the 1erms and conditions of the agreement

The CCPS carry a dividend of 0.0001% per annum The investor has certain additional rights of distnibution at the time of a hquidation event.
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

As at As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
4 L4

4 Reserves and surplus

Securities premium reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 560,202,938 560,202,938
Add * Additions on account of exercise of options during earlier years (Refer note no.24)

6,484,341 -
Balance at the end of the year 566,687,279 560,202,938
Debenture redemption reserve - 792,398
General Reserve
Balance at the begening of the year . -
Add: Transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve 792,398 -
. Balance at the end of the year 792,398 -
Foreign currency transiation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 49,868,833 121,150,454
Add : Addition / (deletion) made during the year 35,799,674 (71,281.621)
Balance at the end of the year 85,668,507 49,868,833
Statement of Profit and Loss
Deficit at the beginning of the year {289.779.375) {184.621,766)
Add: Profit/{loss) for the year 40.551.203 {105,157 609)
Balance at the end of the year (249,228,172) {289,779,375)
403,920,012 321,084,794

e Sndher)
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Notes o the consoligated Hin

aneial statements 16r the year euded 371 March 2018

As at As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
2 ¥
§ Long-term borrowings
Secured
Term loan from 8 pank * 17.500.000 30.000.000
Fund baesd working capital loan® 300.980.000
Vehicle loans from a bank * - 2716 480
Unsecured
Qphonally convertibie debentures {Refer nole ¢ below! - 3189 590
Finance tease obligatons 778.987 20008638
319,258,967 37,886,688
Less . Current maturities
Secured
Term loan from a bank * 10,000,000 12,500,000
Fund baesd working capnial loan” 94 056,250 -
Vetucle icans from a bank * - 981743
Unsecured
Optionally convartibie debentures (Refer note ¢ beiow) B 3,189,590
Finance lease obiigations 435 975 1461623
104,482 225 18,112,956
214,766,742 19,773,732

a) Term ioan and vehwle 10ans Carmy nterest rangng from 10 95% - 13 60% per annum and are repayable aiong with interest within five years from the

date of loan
X Facility ot As at As at
Repayment Details (?) Rate of interest 11 180 31
Term Loan:
20 gquarterly mstaiments of ¥ 2,500 000 each after 13 months 50000000 450% above the 17,500,000 30,000.000
moratorium base rate, present
efflective  rate  of
1380%pa
Vehicie Loans:
80 equated monthiy insiaiments of # 56 050 each 2700000 C85% above the - 1266 352
i base rate present
effectve rate  of
10495%pa
B0 equated monthly instaiments of 43 989 each 2,000,000 055% above the E 1,417 108
base rate present
effective rale  of
10 95% na

b

—~—

Date of repayment

Amount in €

31 March 2018 (paid on Aprd 0120183

800000

31 March 2017

750.000

31 March 2018

750,000

31 March 2019

1,000 000

31 March 2020

1.000.000

[Total

4,000,000

* Details of guarantee for each type of borrowings

A corporate guarantee has been gven by Acunova Life Sciences Private Limited on term lnans availed by the Company

* Details of security

Fund based working capial loan carrying interast of 6m Euribor + 2. 70% per annurm for € 4.000,000 repayabie as per the below schedule

Term loan and venicle ioan from a bank are secured by way of hypothecation of plant and machinery and the respective vehicles purchased

¢} The Board of Drrectars in their meeting held on 24 July 2015 approved the redemption of unsecured redeemable convertible debentures ssued in 2013
of T 10 each to Acunova Life Sciences Privale Limited These have been redearmed during the year ended 31 March 2018

d) Finance lease obligations

The tease payments are determined on the basis of the lease agreements entered into with the consttusnts and the fulure lease commaments are given

beipw
As at 31 March 2016 {¥) As at 31 March 2015 (¥)
Minimum Present vaiue of Present value of
Particulars i
Payments minimum  lease Minimum Payments minimum  lease
payments payments
Payable not ater than 1 ypar 231484 435975 1.516 844 1461623
Payable fater than 1 year not {ater than five years 837995 342 492 628 527 539 015
Payable later than five years
868 479 7TB 67 2,146 371 2.000 638
Less: Amounts representng interest G0 512 - 145733 -
778.967 778967 _ 2000638 2000638
€ Long term provisions
Provisions for employee benafits (Refer note 31) 687 782
697,782
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Notes to the consoliduted financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

As at As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
k4 2
7 Short-term borrowings
Secured
Cash Credit from banks 93.372.594 361,046.969
Unsecured
Loan from related parties* 25,000,000 -
118,372,594 361,046,969
Note:

Details of security and interest rate
iy Cash credits from a bank inciudes an amount of 2 Nil (€ Nil} [31 March 2015 ¥ 270.041.600 (€ 4,000,000)] secured by way of hypothecation of
inventory, receivables and other current assets. The loan carries an interest of 6m Euribor + 2 70% per annum.

iy Cash credit from a bank also includes an amount of ¥ 93.372 594 {31 March 2015 2 91.005.369 ) secured agamst the deposit made by Manipal
Acunova Limited at State Bank of India and carries a rate of interest of 13 05%

Details of guarantee
A corporate guarantee has been given by Acunova Life Sciences Private Limited on the cash credit availed by the Group

* Loan from related party represents amount borrowed from parent company with an interest holiday penod till March 31. 2016 interest at the rate of 7%
p a shall accure on a reducing balance basis from Aprii 1. 2016 only if the loan is not repaid before May 31. 2016

8 Trade payables

Trade creditors other than MSME creditors 82 942 626 74,933,580
82,942 626 74,933,580

9 Other current liabilities

Current maturities

- Term loans from banks 10.000.000 12.500.000

- Fund based working capital 94.056.250 -

- Vehicle Joans from banks - 881,743

- Optionally convertible debentures (Refer note & b) - 3.169.590

- Finance lease obligations 435,975 1.461623
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 207,858 1,500,746
Accrued expenses 67 478.360 87,552 533
Advance Received from Customers 132.191,928 175648.437
Advances and Unearned revenue 283615682 181.730.916
Dues to refated parties (Refer note 27) - 418,070
Statutory dues payable 15,044 597 12,693,926
Employee related habilities 9,268 516 13.798.263
Capital creditors 2.030.658 -
Others 2,007,625 790,349

626,337,449 492,245,196

‘0 Short-term provisions

Provisions for employee benefits 31981427 20,183 847
Provision for tax - 14,363 084

31,981,427 34,546,931
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

11 Fixed assets (Cont'd)

Intangible assets

Amount in ¥
. Computer
Total

Particulars Trademarks Goodwil Software

Gross Block

Balance as at 01 April 2014 28,757,368 596,148,334 58,663,048 683,588,750

Additions - - 2.243.845 2,243,845

Translation adjustment - {108,577.580) {4.913,541) (114,491 131}

Balance as at 31 March 2015 28,757,368 486,570,744 56,013,352 571,341,464

Additions - - 41,945,348 41,845 348

Translation adjustment - 55.745 921 4.248 855 59,994,776

Balance as at 31 March 2016 28,757,368 542,316,665 102,207,555 673,281,588

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 01 April 2014 17,254,422 - 41,921,507 59,175,929

Amortisation for the year 5751474 - 3,668,195 9,419,669

Transiation adjustment - {2.515,247) (2.515,247)

Balance as at 31 March 2015 23,005,896 - 43,074,455 66,080,351

Amortisation for the year 5,751,472 - 4.404 369 10.155 871
. Translation adjustment - - 1,633,958 1,533.958

Balance as at 31 March 2016 28,757,368 - 49,012,812 77,770,180

Net biock

Balance as at 31 March 2015 5751472 486,570,744 12,938,897 506,261,113

Balance as at 31 March 2016 - 542,316,665 53,194,743 595,511,408
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Manipal Acunova Limited

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

As at As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
¢ L4
12 Deferred tax assot, net
Defarred tax asset arising on
Provision for employee benefits 5,049,015 4,519,724
5,049,015 4,519,724
13 Long-term loans and advances
Security deposits 16,693 648 27,580,671
Advance tax including TDS Receivables 47 849574 76,195,983
Duties and taxes recoverable - 5,245 481
64,543,322 109,022,135
14 inventories
Laboratory consumabies and chemicals 3,790,303 4.164 589
3,790,303 4,164,599
.15 Trade receivables
Qutstanding for a penod exceeding six months from the date they are due for
payment
Considered good 10,851,843 33639183
Considered doubtful 35,733,182 20,784 909
46,585,025 54,424 102
Less : Provision for doubtful debts 35,733,182 20.784 908
10,851,843 33,639,193
Other recaivables
Considered good 294 324 242 162,895 250
Considered doubtful - 4.538.97¢
294,324,242 167,435,220
Less  Provision for doubtfu! debts - 4.539.970
294,324,242 162,895,250
305,178,085 196,534,443
16 Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1572111 1,156,647
Cheques on hand - -
Balances with banks
‘ - in current accounts 216.735.976 267.505.962
- In deposit account (with maturity upto 3 months} 37.000.000 -
256,308,087 268,662,609
Other bank balances
Balances with bank
- Margin money deposit against guarantees 7.725033 4.923.986
- Deposits with bank to the extent held as security against borrowings 113.123.324 112,602,723
120,848,357 117,526,709
376,156,444 386,189,318
17 Short-term loans and advances
Loans and advances to related parties 1.507.016 -
Prepaid expenses 19.099,022 12,378,843
Advances to suppliers 8,155,041 8.521.036
Loans and advances to employees 1.228.827 3,698,630
Unbilled revenue 153 989 655 144 494 957
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 1.690.976 1,899,102
Others 18,347 449 1.225 387
205,017,886 172,217,955
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Manipal Acunova Limited
Notes to the consotidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2015
Z i
18 Other income
Interest from bank deposits 9,753.053 9.013.124
Interest on refund of income tax 6,446,740 2.558,040
Profit on sale of fixed assets - 480.108
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation. net 5.228.111 -
Profit on saie of investments 559,953 -
Provision no longer required, written back 13.692.57¢9 11,841,164
Others 2.040.937 12,126,594
37,721,373 36,129,030
18 Laboratory consumables and chemicals consumed
Opening inventory 4,164 599 4.706.357
Add : Purchases during the period / year 52,136 425 40,929 904
56,301,024 45,836,261
Less : Closing inventory 3.790.303 4.164.598
52,510,721 41,471,662
20 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 486.491.743 595,093,910
Contribution to provident and other funds 60.600.383 62 420,540
Gratuity and Other Retirement benefits 5395816 4175156
Expense on employee stock option scheme (Refer note 24) 6,484,341 -
Staff welfare expenses 12,506,284 7.000.772
571,478,567 668,690,378
21 Finance costs
interest expense
- Term loan from banks 3,146,449 5079916
- Vehicie loans from a bank 163,462 360,765
- Cash credit from banks 20410313 20,769,558
Commission on guarantee to related party 2.394,2089 2,782,161
Other Borrowing cost 14,320,840 26315576
Finance lease charges 24.500 184 487
40,458,773 55,492,463
22 Other expenses
Power and fuei 17.906 717 145,744 743
Audit Fees 4.182.858 4.980.304
Rent 41,323,338 38228679
. Repairs & Maintenance - Plant and Equipment 23992698 15,314,354
Repairs and maintenance - office and others 33.143.183 38,307,961
Insurance 10,224,208 12622 116
Rates and taxes 1265312 1.187.088
Communication costs 11,437,604 23.237.027
Postage and Courier 11,600,141 8,387 183
Commission. brokerage & discounts 5,988,565 2.935.707
Traveiling and conveyance 45 662 996 48 796,144
Printing and stationery 3.491. 161 B.071,534
Legal. professionat and consulting fees 66.337.180 73.021.766
Marketing and business promotion expenses 7428745 15,220.703
Membership and subscription 3.230.260 4.468 918
Bank charges 2.056,793 3.499.480
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation net - 12.220.823
Provision for doubtful debts 9.512,082 9 863,548
Bad debts written off 77.359 .
Advances written off . 6.810.153
Loss on sale of fixed assets 476,286 -
Other expenses 951,704 4.927.087
306,289,200 352,845,328
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Manipal Acunova Limited

Notes to the consolidated huasncal st

wits for the year euded 33 March 2048

23 Group structure

The following subsidianes have been considered in the consolidated financial statements.

% Ownership held either directly or through

Name of the entity Iﬂiz:,":;?a t?;n subsidiaries
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Acunova Life Sciences inc | integral USA 100% 100%
Acunova Life Sciences Limited Integral UK 100% 100%
Ecron Acunova Sdn. Bhd, Integral Malaysia 100% 100%
Ecron Acunova Company Limited Non-integral Thatand 82%* T4%
Ecron Acungva GmbH Non-integrai Germany 100% 100%
Step Down Subsidiaries of Ecron Acunova GmbH
- Ecron Acunova A/S Non-Integral Denmark 100% 100%
- Ecron Acunova Lid Non-integrai UK 100% 100%
- Ecron Acunova Russia Non-integrai Russia 100% 100%
- Ecron Acunova Pte Limited Non-integrat Singapore 100% 100%
- Ecron LLC Ukraine Non-Integral Ukraine 51% 100%
-Ecronspzo.o Non-Integrat Poland 100% 100%
- Ecron - The Czech Expertsro Non-integral Czech 100% 100%

* With effect from 23 Novemnber 2014

Acunova Life Scrences Limited. UK has ceased is operations and is i the process of disposing other assets and seftling its liabilities. In view of the
cessation of the operations. the financial statements have been prepared under the liquidation basis of accounting on the assumption that the Company
would cease 1o be a going concern. As a result, all the assets of the Company have been brought down to the value. which they are expected to realize
All known tabilities of the Company have been provided for, to the extent necessary

The other subsidiary of Ecron Acunova GmbH namely Ecron Acunova ltalia S.r 1, llaly, has not been consolidated as it is not considered to be material.

24 Empioyee stock option pian

Manipal Acunova Empioyee Welfare Trust

On 30 August 2005 the shareholders of the Company approved the Manipal Acunova Private Limited -Employee Stock Option Scheme [ESOP 2006]

The Scheme covers all employees of the Company including its part time/ full time Directors other than the promoter directors. The Scheme provides for
issue of 10.000.000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each duly adjusted for any bonus. splits. etc. A Compensation Commitiee comprising of three independent
directors on the Board has heen formed to administer the scheme

As at 31 December 2015, 323861 equity shares {31 March 2015: 323.861 equity shares) of # 10 each issued by the Company to the Employees
Welfare Trust are available for further issue of shares to the employees on exercise of the options granted. These options have been cancelied and the
shares held by ESOP Trust have been transferred to TAKE Solutions Limited by wirtue of Share Purchase Agreements

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company discontinued the accounting for the employee stock compensation expense in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Accounting for Share-based Payments as the Company is of the view that accounting for the same is not mandaltory for the
Company. However, dunng the year. the company has determined the stock compensation cost for the options granted on various dates and have

accounted the same A sum of ¥ 6 484 341/ has been accounted as Expense on employee stock option scheme under the head employee benefits
expense.
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Manipal Acunova Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

25 Leases

Finance Lease

Leasehold improvements include office infrastructure (furniture and fitures) obtained on finance lease for a non-cancellable period
of five to ten years There are no contingent rent arrangements under the terms of the lease.

Operating Lease

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
[ 4 ¥
Lease expense under canceliable and non-canceliable leases 41,323.338 38,228,679
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
¥ 4
26 Eamings/(loss) per share
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 17,795,305 17,795,305
Add: Dilutive effect of convertible securities 6,026,283 6,343,242
Weighted average number of shares used to compute diluted EPS 23,821,588 24,138,547
Net profit/{loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders 40,551,203 {105,167,609)
Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic 2.28 {5.91)
Diluted * 170 NA
Nominal value per equity share 10 10

* Restricted to anti-dilutive amount, as applicable
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Manipal Acunova Limited
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27 Related Party Disclosures
Description of relationship

1} Holding Company
TAKE Solutions Limited

i} Key management personnel (KMP)
Mr DA Prasanna
Mr D A Prasanna
Dr Surnder Kher

Mr Srimvasan H R
Mr DV Raw

Dr H S Ballal

Mr. Lalit Mahapatra
Ms. Ankita Tiwar:

i} Qther refated partws
Acunava Life Sciences Private Limited

Apastrophe Design (Previous Known as Qarn)

v yoar ended 17 Barch 240

Nature of relationship

Holding Company {w e f 18 January 2016)

Managing Director. Resigned w e { September 30 2015
Charman w.e f October 01, 2015, Resigned. w e f January 18, 2016
Managing Director w ef October 1 2015, Resigned w e f December 15, 2015

Non-Executive Director, w e f January 18, 2018
Non-Executive Director. w e f January 18, 2016

Non-Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary. w e f June 09 2015

Enterprise over which relative of key managenal personnel has significant
influence. ceased (w.ef 18 January. 2016)
Enterprise over which relative of key managerial personnel has significant
nfluence. ceased (w e f 18 January 2018}

u) The ransactions with related parties dunng the year.

Nature of transaction

Relationship

31 March 2018

31 March 2015

4 L4
Short term borrowings
TAKE Solutions Limited Hoiding Company 25.000.000
Short Term Loans and Advances
Ecron Acunova Haka S r! 1 507.016 -
Step down subsiciary of Ecron
Acunova GmbH. Germany
Professional Charges
Apostrophe Design (Previous Known as Qern) Enterpnse over which relative of 844 200 828 730
key managenal personne! has
significant influence
Commission paid on letter of comfort
Acunova Life Sciences Private Limited Enterprise over which relative of 1.741.818 2.383,245
key managenat personnel has
sigmificant influence
Redemption of debentures
Acunova Life Scences Povate Limited Enterprise over which refative of 3 169 580 -
key managenal pergonnel has
significant wfiuence
Remuneration
Mr DA Prasanna* Managing Director 3.074.584 7.466.143
Mr DA Prasannag® Chairman 3093971 -
Dr Sunnder Kher™” Managing Director 4289735 -
Mr Latt Mahapatra Chief Financial Cfficer 4821138 4387 962
Ms Ankita Tiwan Company Secretary 404 460 -

“Resigned from MO post w e f 30th September. 2015 and apponted as chairman for the penocd 110/2015 10 18/1/2016

Apponted as Managing diector w e f 1st Ociober. 2015 and ceases to be Managing Director from 15th December. 2015
w} Clasing balance of related parties receivablas ¢ {payables)

Nature of transaction

Relationship

31 March 2018

31 March 2018

¥ L4
Short term borrowings
TAKE Solutions Limited Holding Company 25.000.000 -
Other current liabilities
Acunova Life Scences Private Limited Enterprise over which relative of {3.169 590)
key managenal personnel has
significant influence
Mr 3 A Prasanna Chairman - (416.070)

Corporate guarantee
Acunova Life Sciences Private Limited

Enterprise over which relative of
key managenal personned has
signficant influence
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Manipal Acunova Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial siatemnents for the year ended 31 March 20186

29 Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises

As at 31 March 2016 there are no dues (March 31, 2015 T Nil) to Micro and Small Enterprises that are reportable under The Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Developmant (MSMED) Act, 2006. There are no interests due or outstanding on the same.

30 Revenue from operations includes reimbursements received for certain expenses incurred on projects invoiced separately to
customers amounting 2 307 430,463 (31 March 2015+ 2 142,085,920}

31 Statement of Net Assets and Profit or Loss attributable to Owners and Minority interest

Share in Profit or Loss

Share in Net Assets

: As % of As % of
Name of the entity Consolidated Amount ¥ Consolidated Amount T
Profit/(L.oss) Net Assets

Parent

Manipal Acunova Limited 146% 58,384 825 66% 704 513,928

Foreign Direct Subsidiaries

Acunova Life Sciences Inc -3% {1.252.059) 0% 1.283.793

Ecron Acunova Company Lid 28% 11.468.390 1% 7,398.632

Ecron Acunova GmbH -52% {20.995,430) 32% 340.746.986
' Acunova Life Sciences Ltd 2% (664 485) 1% 10.499 231

Ecron Acunova Pte Lig -18% (7.389.838) 1% 8.9592.416

100% 40,551,203 100% 1.073.434 986

Less. Adjustments arising out of Consolidation - {407 046 924;

Less: Minority interest - -

Consolidated Profit after tax / Net Assets 40,551,203 666,388,062

32 Prior year amounts have been regrouped/ireciassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's presentation

For Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0042018

r s, P C/’
; \ s o

u}/
idhar
' Partner

Membership No . (25504 -

Manipal
02 May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Manipal Acunova Limited

j Luxy ol OA
Srinivasan H. R.

Director
DIN: 00130277

Manipal
02 May 2016

D. V. Ravi
Director

DIN: 00171603

Marnipal
02 May 2016

\ ,f"/
- . \ ‘

>
A
Ankita Tiwari

Company Secretary
Membership Number A34067

Manipal
02 May 2016
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Lalit Mahapatra
Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TAKE SOLUTIONS GLOBAL HOLDINGS PTE LTD
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TAKE SOLUTIONS
GLOBAL HOLDINGS PTE LTD (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its
subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”),
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of thesc
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies ‘Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”)that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecung trauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from marterial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose ol
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Compam,
as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. While conducung the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audir
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.




CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP Contd...........

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order o
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors,
as well as evaluatng the overall presentaton of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanadons given to us,
and based on other auditor's report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fawr view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2016, and their consolidated profit and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the stand alone financial statements of the subsidiaries, whose financial
statements have been included herein. These financial statements / financial information have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub section (3)
and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solelv
on the reports of the other auditors. '

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Orther legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect o
our reliance the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements /

i

financial information certified by the Management.




CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP Contd...........

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

2. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to pteparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on 31st March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on 3lst
March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f. With respect to the other marters to be included in the Auditor’s Reporr in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us:

1) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group— Refer Norte
2.26 to the consolidated financial statements.

1f) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts

1) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies.

For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
§0.0049ISS 7/ S200036

Place: Chennai )
Dated: 10th May 2016 XEN Partner
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
Particulars Note Amount in USD
March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 2.1 39,543,200 35,093,200
{b) Reserves and surplus 2.2 37,810,588 27,276,784
2. Minority interest 5,195,325 8,227,524
3. Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 2.3 7,030,000 128,250
{b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 1,848,611 952,705
(c) Other long-term liabilities 2.4 397,935 194,277
{d) Long-term provisions 2.5 994,247 903,387
4, Current liabilities
{a) Short-term borrowings 2.6 24,260,380 24,260,380
{b) Trade payables 4,108,870 3,997,463
(c) Other current liabilities 2.7 7,382,011 17,061,937
{d) Short-term provisions 2.8 524,540 57,263
TOTAL 129,055,707 118,153,1
. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 2.9
(i) Tangible assets 10,316,587 2,006,647
(if) Intangible assets 16,508,618 15,910,773
(iii) Capital work-in-progress - 46,811
{b) Non-current investments 2.10 2,950,000 750,000
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 17,835 18,009
(d) Long-term loans and advances 2.11 674,600 210,510
2. Goodwill on consolidation 28,917,177 29,501,046
3. Current assets
(a) Inventories 2.12 2,611,639 2,482,812
{b) Trade receivables 2.13 37,175,006 34,750,749
{c) Cash and cash equivalents 2.14 9,129,196 12,109,038
{d) Short-term loans and advances 2.15 20,752,961 20,324,696
(e} Other current assets 2.16 42,088 42,079
TOTAL [ 129,095,707 | 118,153,170 |
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1&2

As per our report attached

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0049155

o\

C.N. GANGADARAN e

Partner
Membership No.: 011205

Place : Chennai
Date : May 10, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

aeord

Director
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

Particulars Note I Warch 31 2'33:"’ 'K.Us'f, 31,2015

| T N re
1. Revenue from operations 2.17 117,031,258 93,021,250
II. Other income 2.18 3,009,782 158,837 |
Hl, Total Revenue 120,041,040 93,180,087
IV. Expenses
Cost of revenue 2.19 27,134,125 19,876,213
Employee benefit expenses 2.20 35,316,539 29,523,626
Finance costs 2.2 2,006,908 2,120,610
Depreciation 2.9 1,075,186 443,079
Amortization 2.9 7,519,828 6,255,051
Other expenses Yy 31,516,295 24,531,323
Total expenses 104,568,881 82,749,902
V. Profit before tax 15,472,159 10,430,185
Vi, Tax expense

(a) Current tax 323,798 83,783

{b) Deferred tax 895,906 (283,336)

(c) Short/(Excess) provision for earlier years (16,380) (78,484)
VIl Profit before minority interest 14,268,835 10,708,222
ViIl. Minority interest 566,555 1,484,754
IX, Profit for the year 13,702,280 9,223,468
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1&2
As per our report attached
For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 004915S

d

-N. GANGADARAN
Partner
Membership No.: 011205

Place : Chennai
Date : May 10, 2016
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
Particulars Amount fn USD
March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/{Loss) for the year 15,472,159 10,430,185
Depreciation 1,075,186 443 079
Amortisation 7,519,828 6,255,051
Interest Expense 2,006,908 2,120,610
Interest Income (2,306) (4,704)
Foreign Exchange Adjustments- Loss/ (Gain) - net (84,470) {1,532)
|Bad Debts written off 44,551 22,911
Operating Profit/Loss before working capital changes 26,031,856 19,265,600
{Increase) / Decrease in Current Assets (2,761,601) (6,669,589)
(Increase) / Decrease in Non-Current Assets {464,090) 248,622
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (1,356,392) {354,611)
Increase / (Decrease) in Non-Current Liabilities 294,518 {58,540)
Cash flow from/ (used in) Operations 21,744,291 12,431,482
Direct Tax Paid (8,136) (250,028)
Net cash from / (used) in Operating Activities 21,736,155 12,181,454
Cash flows from Investing activities

{Purchase of Fixed Assets - Net {9,635,275) (1,870,311)
Product Development Expenses (8,881,898) (6,273,630)
interest income 2,306 4,704
Increase in non-current investments {2,200,000) {750,000)
Adjustments on account of merger (1,986,219) {2,640,808)
Goodwill on Investment in Equity Shares in Subsidiary Companies 583,869 4,885,217
Net cash from/ (used) in Investing Activities (22,117,217) {6,644,828)
Cash flows from Financing activities

Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings (843,100) (1,709,914)
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital 4,450,000 -
Movement in Minority interest {3,032,199) 1,285,679
Net Movement in Reserve on account of Consolidation 90,838 13,352
Interest Expense {(2,006,908) {2,120,610)
Net cash from/(used) in financing Activities (1,341,369) {2,531,493)
Effect on Foreign Currency Exchange Rates on Consolidation {1,257,411) (1,077,525)
Net change in Cash and Cash equivalents (2,979,842) 1,927,608
Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,109,038 10,181,430
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,129,196 12,109,038
Notes forming part of the financial statements - Note 1 & 2

As per our report attached

For CNGSN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 0049155 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C.N. GANGADARAN Director

Partner

Membership No.: 011205

Place : Chennai
Date : May 10, 2016
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

1. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1.

1.2,

1.3.

Basis of Preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd and its subsidiaries
(The Group) are prepared in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises mandatory
accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’)
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Accounting policies have been
consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used for consolidation are drawn up to
the same reporting date as of the company.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the company and its subsidiary companies have been
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. All material intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized
surpluses and deficits on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Consistency in adoption of accounting policies among all group companies is ensured to
the extent practicable. Separate disclosure is made for Minority Interest.

b) The excess of cost to the company of its investments in subsidiary companies over its
share of equity of the subsidiary companies at the dates on which the investments in
subsidiary companies are made, is recognized as ‘Goodwill’ being an asset in the
consolidated financial statements. Alternatively, where the share of equity in the
subsidiary companies as on the date of investment, is in excess of cost of investment of
the company, it is recognized as ‘Capital Reserve’ in the consolidated financial
statements.

C) Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consist of the amount of
equity attributabte to the minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are
made by the company in the subsidiary companies and further movements in their share
in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investment.

d) Exchange difference resulting from the difference due to transtation of foreign currency
assets and liabilities in subsidiaries is disclosed as foreign currency translation reserve.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of Financial Statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions that
the Company may undertake in future, actual results ultimately may differ from the
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in future
periods.
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1.5.
1.5.1.

1.5.2.

1.5.3.

1.6.

1.7.

TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies pertaining to the principal business segments of the
company are set out below.

Revenue Recognition
Software and Consuitancy Revenue

The Contracts between the Company and its customers are either Time and Material
contracts or Fixed Price contracts.

a. Revenue from fixed price contract is recognized according to the milestones achieved
as specified in the contracts on the Proportionate Completion method based on the
work completed. Any anticipated losses expected upon the contract completion are
recognized immediately. Changes in job performance, conditions and estimated
profitability may result in revisions and corresponding revenues and costs are
recognized in the year in which such changes are identified.

b. In respect of time and material contract, revenue is recognized in the year in which the
services are provided. Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnings in excess of
billings while deferred revenue represents the billing in excess of cost and earnings.

c. Revenue from product sale and licensing arrangements are recognized on delivery and
installation.

Sale of IT Infrastructure and Support Services

Income from sale of IT Infrastructure is recognized upon completion of sale. Income from
support services is recognized upon rendering of the services. Income from maintenance
contracts relating to the year is recognized when the contracts are entered into on a time
proportionate basis.

Other Income

a) Interest income is recognized using time proportion method based on rates implicit in
the transaction.

b) Dividend Income is recognized when the company's right to receive dividend is
established.

c) Miscellaneous income and other income is recognized on accrual basis when there is no
uncertainty of realization.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby net profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The Cash Flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. The Cash Flow
Statement forms part of the financial statements.

Software Product Development Cost

Internally developed software products are valued based on costs directly attributable to
the development of such software and allocated indirect cost and they are capitalised
individually once their technical feasibility is established in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard 26, ‘Intangible Asset’. T
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1.8.

i)

i)

ifi)

iv)

1.9.

TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

Expenses incurred during research phase till the establishment of commercial feasibility is
charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Products capitalised are being amortized over a period of three to five years from the
launch date and the unamortised product costs as at Balance Sheet date are shown under
Assets separately.

Amortisation of capitalised software development cost for the year ended March 31, 2016
amounted to USD 7,519,828,

Foreign Exchange Transactions/ Translation Reserve

All monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reflected at the closing exchange
rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date; the resultant exchange differences are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

Income and expenditure items involving foreign exchange are translated at the exchange
rate prevailing on the dates of transaction.

Exchange differences, if any arising on account of fluctuations in foreign exchange has been
duly reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For the purposes of consolidation the operations of overseas subsidiaries are considered as
non-integral in nature and accordingly their assets and liabilities of subsidiaries are
translated at the period-end exchange rate and income and expenditure items are
translated at the average rates during the period. The resultant translation adjustment is
reflected as a separate component of Shareholders' funds as 'Foreign currency translation
reserve’. Upon dissolution/ disposal of subsidiary, the balance in foreign currency
translation reserve in relation to that subsidiary will be transferred to Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Fixed assets are capitalized at
acquisition cost, which comprises of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes, and other directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the Straight Line Method (SLM) over the
estimated useful lives of the assets determined as follows;

Asset Life (in years)
Computers and purchased software 3-6 years
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 4-10 years
Automobiles 4-10 years
Leasehold improvements Period of Lease
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1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

investments

a} Long-term investments are carried at cost. Cost comprises of transfer fee, stamp paper,
brokerage, etc.

Any decline in the value of the long-term investments other than a temporary decline,
is recognized and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost (determined on specific
identification basis) and fair value. The comparision of cost and fair value is carried out
separately in respect of each investment,

¢) Profit or Loss on sale of investments is determined on specific identification basis.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation/ acquisition of assets is not amortised. It is tested for
impairment on a periodic basis and written off, if found impaired.

Taxes on Income

Tax expenses comprising of both current tax and deferred tax are included in determining
the net results for the period.

Current Tax
Taxes on income for the current period are determined on the basis of local Statutory Tax
Laws of the respective countries.

Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax reflects the effect of timing differences between the assets and liabilities

recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized for current
tax purposes. As a matter of prudence deferred tax assets are recognised and carried
forward only to the extent, there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past
event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

2. Notes forming part of Financial Statements

2.1, Share Capital

2.1.1. The Particulars of authorized, issued, subscribed & fully paid up Share Capital:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Number ush Number usp

Authorised
Equity Shares of SGD 1 each 50,200,600 | 39,543,200 | 44,109,100 | 35,093,200
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up fully
Equity Shares of SGD 1 each 50,200,600 | 39,543,200 { 44,109,100 | 35,093,200

Total 50,200,600 | 39,543,200 | 44,109,100 | 35,093,200

2.1.2. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of
the year is as given below:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 44,109,100 44,109,100
Changes during the year 6,091,500 -
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 50,200,600 44,109,100

2.1.3. Hotding Company

30,200,600 Equity Shares (44,109,100) are held by TAKE Solutions Limited, India, the holding
company.

2.1.3.1.  Equity Shareholder holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the number of
equity share held at end of the year:
As at As at
Name of the Shareholder March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
% of % of
Number Holding Number Holding _
TAKE Solutions Limited, India 50,200,600 100 44,109,100 100
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.2. Reserves & Surplus

As at As at
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usb usb
a) Capital Reserve on Consolidation
Opening balance 189,048 189,048
Add : Transfer during the year 60,037 -
Closing balance 249,085 189,048
b) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 2,030,415 3,287,826
¢) Legal Reserve
Opening balance 165,604 152,252
Add : Transfer during the year 15,684 6,370
Add : Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 15,117 6,982
Closing balance 196,405 165,604
d) Surplus (Balance in Statement of profit and loss)
Opening balance 23,634,306 16,178,995
Add: Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 13,702,280 9,223,468
Amount available for appropriations: 37,336,586 25,402,463
Less: Transfer to Legal Reserve 15,684 6,370
Less: Other Adjustments - Disposal of Investments/merger 1,986,219 1,761,787
Closing balance 35,334,683 23,634,306
Total 37,810,588 27,276,784
2.3, Long-Term Borrowings
As at As at
. March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usb usD
Secured
Term Loans - From Banks
Term Loan - Axis Bank Limited 7,030,000 .
Term Loan - Wells Fargo Bank, National Association - 128,250
Total 7,030,000 128,250
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

Axis Bank Limited

Interest - The rate of interest on the outstanding amount is 3 Months LIBOR plus 2.50% p.a. In case
of any default in the payment of principal or interest, interest shall be charged at the rate of 2%
p.a. on the total outstanding amount under the facility.

Tenure - Five years subject to renewal of limit at annual intervals. The repayment of principal has
started from April 18, 2016 and shall get discharged completely on April 15, 2021. Repayment of
principal and interest is at yearly and quarterly intervals respectively.

Security - Secured by Standby Letter of Credit (SBLC) issued by Axis Bank Limited, Singapore

Branch.

2.4, Other Long-Term Liabilities

As at As at
. March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usd usp
Deferred Revenue 397,935 194,277
Total 397,935 194,277
2.5. Long-Term Provisions
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usb usD
Provision for employee benefits 994,247 903,387
Total 994,247 903,387
2.6. Short-Term Borrowings
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usb usp
Secured
Loans repayable on demand from banks 24,260,000 24,260,000
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand
Other loans and advances 380 380
Total 24,260,380 24,260,380
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.7. Other Current Liabilities

As at As at
Particulars Ma;gt; 63 1, Ma;;l: ; 1,
usb usb
Current maturities of long term debt 1,226,317 8,971,167
Deferred Revenue 4,831,398 5,617,479
Statutory payables 120,487 174,777
Advance received from customers 386,829 641,349
interest accrued and due on borrowings 2,921 165,299
Employee related liabilities 563,459 1,315,525
Other payables 250,600 176,341
Total 7,382,011 17,061,937
2.8. Short-Term Provisions
As at As at
Particulars Ma;g!: 3 1, Ma;gt: 53 1
usb uso
Provision for employee benefits 82,552 48,636
Provision for taxes 307,909 8,627
Equity Dividend Payable 134,079 -
Total 524,540 57,263

Page 11 of 21




17 J0 71 98y

soz'sze'or | ofT'rze'er ilvt'e) M I 910'c68's | 90L'mIe'or | Lov'ski'es lese'bEl  {ee§'Teo's) [uss's SIS’ LLse'Tel'vy 001 puesy
. - - - (149't9) 008°9 18’0y oL
. . (119°c9) 008’y we'e ssadoig U ysop rudvy) (2
si9'806'9t | slg'108'0t {01 {976'165'L) - wrpel'L  wetsev'er [oroseiis oty eeZ'eni'® 868°199's | L0'9I8'9E oL
oES0TSEL | £S6'ovBl - (o' 1970 - SI'6ISTL | 9G9Il | Iereeriis - (567'¢64'0) - s'tee's  IessoEne sasuady Juewdoraaag 1NpoXd
819°048°7 - - . - - 09087 JlovZ'sd (rvs's)) - . VEr'IS'T P00y
8Lysil U8 0 Hesr'ois) £ 0w o'l o (65p'040) . 6£2°08¢"4 aemos Jandwoy
swssy ajqlueny (g
wiae'or |oree's  [(ess'e) (1605880 [ais't 65'09% Tor'es9's | vee'ses’s) [laze'ol)  Hveo'ser') [use'y Sir'sre's | evo'oly'L 1oL
w0ss  leseT  [legt'e (e1y'g66) 8" 'l T (senye ' (156°9/8) 0 suur's et Jandwo)
81t e 9%z (s12'05) - 9s'Ts 9E ‘0¥ 19L°v6E £0¢ (8s0'v) . wr'sy ST SIPIA
ey sl (e (vy'cic) - 17474 oL [wo'ear't  feso) (228'6hy) 16EE) | 060'ot saiMyyy pue Smyuny
wmst  |sisto ez (629'c6) . 0£'(59 10905y nehesy el {L1's) FESOL6T | L06°6E9°) Wwawdib3 940
. 166508 ligad] - . 456 mn fs'e (v$9'0) - . Hy'es sSupyng
sessy ojqiury) (e
asn asn asn a0 [ asn asn asn asn asn asn a0 asn
9107 90T sk 9401
. ‘ saasnipy Suopjsynboy SI0T 1o tndv] syaupnipy suopisinboy SHOT ‘10 Hdy
PN | C)E oy uopdlg ap o) stieyd it Py suopajeg SUORIPPY .
st aouvieg | e v aoueyeg | PTRAL U0 SORPPY | ovepasdag | ™™ PV | o cp oumpeg | UORERURLL U0 SUOPPY I0 s adumpRg sy oN
W0i8 19N UORNPYIdaq paeinIY ¥yooig 5040
(asn w unoury)

{SMO)|0} SB 3R 9107 ‘LE YDIew Papua 1eak ayy Joj s3asse paxy Jo anjea Suikised ayy ut saueyd oy

910Z ‘1€ YoJew papua Jeak ayj Joj
sjuUaWajess jerueULj pajepijosuo) ayj jo Jed Sujuiio) sajoN

P11 914 S8uIp|OH |ego]9 suolnjos IRYL

S}assy paxtd *6°C




1Z Jo £} a8ey

1ELP96°LL | 90L'ate'or  (rpi'ss) (r08°601) 0EL'969'9 [ pTi'oLL’sy | Lte‘zer'vy  [egicr)  Jye'eny) Wwo'isk's | TL8TTres {0} puein
. - - - - - - - (001°17) 00}, 000°¥) 1901
p - . - - . . . 0012 0012 0001 wewdojarsg jepun sasse ajqfunyuyl (0
L'y - - - . L9y . 1189y - woj
189y . . - - - big'oy . - g . ssasBoug upyop Joyded| (o)
ELL'016'GE | vOEG99°0T [} - TEL'YSE'D | HIS'0ME'YL | L40'945°9E  [l9E8°Z6) - £66909' | 0Ze'T90%0t 01
88T'P9U | 965919%) - - 150°662'9 eha'ioe’tl | wBS'08ZZE (1) . 0£9'eL'9 65240092 sasuadiq wawdolarag 1npoig
bSH¥16'T . - . . . ver'reT  {{L68'26) . - 162°L00°E 1iMpoosy
1E0'ZEE 20£'90's i . 189'66 920'th6 6E2°08€°) 4 - £96°2¢¢ viL'100") asemyos 1ndiio)
sessy ajquey| (g
99007 jTov'e99’s  lghi‘se) (r08°601) 868 °EVE gescor's | ev0'0L9°L  |(ev'se) (Zhs 021 AR LX) o)
6£6'55k 6WoTLT  (976°00) (£29°99) 691'607 LE6'769'T wo''s  {lesi'Td) (£99°95) wr'st 60T°161°8 Jaindwo)
676704 99£0VE 41 (v8Y*15) 160°2E WL 6E SLE‘Shy 4 {918°c6) pIT'ss SL6°0IY SAAYIA
£16°467 418107 | {te9')) £98°08 GEB‘EvE") 0f0'oLT'y  |sT'o) {€v0'9) 650°LL WU SN PUE JUMIng
00E'681°1 10906k [t4] - 198 'Sty 106'6£9°4 - - 000°007°1 10668k Juawdinb3 821330
96 e (688°6) - 67 261'68 ViV (880°01) - - 65266 sBuppng
spessy aigifuey| (e
asn asn asn asn asn asn asn asn asn asn asn
11114 sioz Jeak SHOT
‘ ‘ sweunsn{py ¥ioz ‘Lo mdy| Quaunsn{py ¥10Z 10 udy
1€ Yarew 1€ Yoy suopejeq  jay3 Joj sliwp bE Yosey suogajag SUoRIppY oy
¢ 5 eouejeg | e s aoueeg uopesuRIL uopepesdag 30 50 dsunjeg 10 5% ooueeg uopupsuRI L 1® 52 3uRjeg siejnInRg ON 'S
%09 9N uogjeaidag pajejmunddy ¥0]g 55010
{asn uj wnoury)

{SMOj0J Se BJe GL0Z ‘JE Y2Jew P3pua Jedh ayj 1o SIasSe paxyy JO anjea Bukiied ay) u saueyp ay)

(panunuo)) syassy paxid *6°2

9107 ‘L€ YoJew papua Jeak ay) Joj
SjudwWalels jepURULY pajepliosuo) ay) jo Jued Supwio) sajoN
P37 81d SBUIPIOH 1240}D SUOINOS INVL




1Z 40 ¢} 98ed

000°0S. 0000567 =01

aoud 1500 - 000°00L ped Ajind pajonbun S18fi0 du] * ysn awesoads
%3035 3J2)94d Uj SIBW)SIAY|
soudsoa vy | 000°006 000052 pied Ajing pyonbun 10 ¥Sn oM ASssuzaug ()
oudiscoy | 000°0sT 000000} pied Anng pajonbun IYI0 VSN ‘uoilesodlon) euieyq siieyos (1)
sjuswin.gsu) Anb3 uj syuauisaauy

GIOZ ‘b€ WPreW | 910T ‘LE yorew
SIagI0
pred 1 Kapu3 pajjonuc)
HORBNIEA J0 St568 050 vt 3unowy Ang /pieg Anseg |PET0un 1 9mond |y SRR
1 Meeppisqng
SIUBURSAAU] JURLIN 4O S}IeIRq
000°05. 000°056'7 1eloL
000°00L H20JS ADURIRJAIJ UL SIUBUSIALY
WI0J§ 3MAI)DIJ Uf SIUBUISAAY|
000°06. 0000627 SIY30 - SIUBWINIISU] AUNb3 Ul SJUBWISAAY|
sjuaunaysy| Aynb3 uj sjuawisaay
asn asn
SLOT “JE WOrRW | 9107 ‘1 ydsew siejnjuey
sy ® sy

SJUBWIISBAU] JUBLIND-UON *01°Z

910Z ‘L€ Yaiew papud 1eal ay) Jo)
SjuawWa)els |eIdURULY Pajepljosuo) ay) jo yued Buiuiioy sajoN
P11 @1d SBUIP)OH jeqo}9 suofInjos INV.L



TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2016

2,11, Long-Term Loans and Advances

As at As at
March 31 March 31,
Particulars 2016 ’ 2015
usp uso
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 324,600 184,892
Prepaid expenses - 25,618
Capital Advances - Capital Goods 350,000 -
Total 674,600 210,510
2.12. Inventories
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
uspD usb
Stock-in-trade - Valued at cost 2,611,639 2,482,812
Total 2,611,639 2,482,812
2.13, Trade Receivables
As at As at
. March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usb usb
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Unsecured and considered good 1,835,038 1,604,684
Unsecured and considered doubtful 167,328 133,601
Less : Provision for doubtful debts (167,328) (133,601)
1,835,038 1,604,684
Other debts
Unsecured and considered good 35,339,968 33,146,065
Unsecured and considered doubtful 9,963 -
Less : Provision for doubtful debts (9,963) .
35,339,968 33,146,065
Total 37,175,006 34,750,749
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.14, Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at As at
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usD ush
Balances with bank in current and deposit accounts * 9,110,703 12,048,437
Cash on hand 18,493 16,423
Cheques on hand 44,178
Total 9,129,196 12,109,038
*Includes Guarantees 15,831 37,983
*Includes Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 65,025 64,895
2.15. Short-Term Loans and Advances
As at As at
. March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usp usb
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses 1,830,829 1,214,610
Advance to employees 230,755 583,136
Advance for services 6,656,980 6,338,735
Advance - Consultants 1,723,183 1,564,320
Interest receivable - 3,700
Unbilled receivables 5,917,728 5,659,882
Taxes receivable 28,143 12,638
Advance - Others 4,365,343 4,947,675
Total 20,752,961 20,324,696
2.16. Other Current Assets !
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usD usb
Others - Unsecured, considered good 42,088 42,079
Total 42,088 42,079
2.17. Revenue from Operations
For the year ended
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usbD usD
Income from software services and products 116,910,073 93,010,840
Income from sale of IT infrastructure and support services 121,185 10,410
Total 117,031,258 93,021,250
425“5%’4%
/4 ‘3‘(
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.18. Other Income

For the year ended
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
UsSD usb
Interest income 2,306 4,704
Other non-operating income 93,570 144,810
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss)-net 84,470 1,532
Net Gain/{Loss) on sale of investments 2,829,436 7,791
Total 3,009,782 158,837
2.19, Cost of Revenue
For the year ended
. March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usb usob
Software and consultancy and services cost 27,018,124 19,866,008
Cost of IT infrastructure and support services 116,001 10,205
Total 27,134,125 19,876,213
2.20. Employee Benefit Expenses
For the year ended
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
Usb usop
Salaries and incentives 32,587,915 26,621,754
Contributions to PF and other funds 1,336,898 1,420,320
Gratuity and leave encashment 240,268 174,662
Staff welfare 1,151,458 1,306,890
Total 35,316,539 29,523,626
2,21, Finance Costs
For the year ended
R March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2016 2015
usb usb
Interest expense 817,516 1,102,640
Other borrowing costs 1,189,392 1,017,970
Total | 2,006,908 2,120,610

Page 17 of 21




TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.22. Other Expenses

For the year ended
Particulars Ma;gt; 63 1 Ma;gl; 531 ’
usb usb

Audit Fees 273,031 231,328
Bad Debts 44,551 22,911
Bank Charges 65,130 48,266
Charity (CSR) 3,600 23,945
Commission & Brokerage 452,621 394,673
Communication Expenses 4,202,405 2,158,958
Electricity Expenses 108,070 144,123
Insurance 232,685 256,924
Legal & Professional Charges 5,753,197 4,025,733
Loss on Sale of Assets - 1,895
Marketing Expenses 5,629,902 6,045,679
Meeting & Conference 736,056 408,237
Office Expenses 955,792 1,149,219
Postage & Telegrams 29,524 48,202
Printing & Stationery 95,467 121,515
Provision for Non-Moving Stock 15,073 -
Rates & Taxes 109,148 97,907
Rent 1,480,718 1,905,211
Repairs & Maintenance - Others 297,178 707,775
Repairs & Maintenance - Plant and Equipment 4,436,569 1,569,069
Security Charges - 4,533
Subscription Charges 133,673 153,489
Travelling and Conveyance 6,461,905 5,011,731

Total 31,516,295 24,531,323
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.23. Related Party Disclosure

List of Related Parties

Holding Company: TAKE Solutions Limited, india
Subsidiaries

TAKE Solutions Information Systems Pte Ltd, Singapore
Towell TAKE Investments LLC, Sultanate of Oman
Navitas Life Sciences Holdings Limited, UK

TAKE Enterprise Services Inc., USA

TAKE Innovations Inc., USA

Subsidiaries (held indirectly)

Navitas, Inc.,USA

Applied Clinical Intelligence LLC, USA {ceased w.e.f June 30, 2015)
TAKE Supply Chain De Mexico S De Ri De Cv., Mexico
Mitlion Star Technologies Limited, Mauritius

Towell TAKE Solutions LLC, Sultanate of Oman

TAKE Solutions MEA Limited, UAE

Mirnah Technologies Systems Limited, Saudi Arabia
Navitas Life Sciences Limited, UK

Navitas Life Sciences, Inc., USA

10. TAKE Synergies Inc., USA (added during the year)

11. TAKE Dataworks Inc., USA (added during the year)
12. Intelent Inc., USA (added during the year)

13. Astus Technologies inc., USA (added during the year)

wmhWN -

O@NF U AW

Fellow Subsidiaries

1. Navitas LLP, india
2. APA Engineering Pte Ltd, Singapore

Key Management Personnel

1. V. Venkatesan, Director
2. Sachin Garg, Director
3. Sai Prasath, Director

Other Related Party WJ. Towell & Co. LLC, Sultanate of Oman - Joint Venture Partner
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

Transactions with Related Parties

Amount in USD
Particulars Holding Fellow Other Related
Company Subsidiaries Parties
Revenue - 280,000 271,410
Cost of Revenue 114,658 1,693,876 121,070
Interest Expense 24,587 - -
Trade Receivables 61,322 1,639,389 67,340
Trade Payables 7,777 943,745 3,583
Other Receivables 5,025 32,080 -
Unsecured Loan from related parties - - 5,172
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - - 2,921
2.24. Segment Reporting
Primary Segment Reporting
Amount in USD
Business Segments
Software
Particulars Products & IT Infra & Total
Consultancy Support Services
Services
116,910,073 121,185 117,031,258
Segment Revenue
(93,010,840) {10,410} (93,021,250)
47,055,582 5,184 47,060,766
Segment Result
(37,366,155) (205) (37,366,360)
Unallocated Corporate Income 3,009,782
(158,837}
Unallocated Corporate Expenses 32,591,481
(24,974,402)
Operating Profit 17,479,067
(12,550,795)
2,006,908
Interest expenses -
(2,120,610)
i 1,203,324
ncome taxes
(278,037)
Net profit before Minority Interest 14,268,835
(10,708,222)
Minority Interest 566,555
(1,484,754)
Net profit after Minority Interest 13,702,280
(9,223,468)

Previous year figures are shown in ltalics in brackets.
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TAKE Solutions Global Holdings Pte Ltd
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016

Secondary Segment Reporting
Amount in USD
For the year ended
Geographic Segments March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Asia Pacific 7,408,022 16,601,650
USA 96,164,721 68,714,279
Rest of the World 13,458,515 7,705,321
Total 117,031,258 93,021,250
2,25, Leases
2.25.1, Obligation under Non-Cancellable Operating Lease
Amount in USD
Minimum Lease Payments As at As at
4 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Not later than one year 626,957 1,092,911
Later than one year but not later than five years 770,434 2,297,018
Later than five years 68,976 187,577

Total rent expenses for operating leases (including cancellable) amounted to USD 1,480,718
(USD 1,905,211) for the year ended March 31, 2016.

2.26. Contingent Liabilitles

Bank Guarantees given by Related Party as at March 31, 2016 - USD 5,447 (USD 5,442).

2.27. The Group has prepared these financial statements as per the format prescribed by Revised
?:cl;‘gfiule tl to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Schedule’) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
2.28. Comparative Figures

Corresponding figures for previous year presented have been regrouped, wherever necessary,

to conform to the current year presentation.

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 004915S

M

C.N. GANGADARAN
Partner e
Membership No.: 011205 .-~ .2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Director Director
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